i Preface

### STANDARD PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS

### **Bidding Documents**

For

### **Procurement of Goods**

### **Agence Française de Développement**



**SEPTEMBER 2024** 

User's Guide ii

Invitation for Bids	Error! Bookmark not defined.
User's Guide on Incoterms	iv
Schedule of Requirements	v

User's Guide iii

#### **Standard Format for Invitation for Bids**

Date: **04 September 2024**Name of Country: **Ethiopia** 

Name of Project: THE SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION OF ICT INFRASTRUCTURE FOR THE ETHIOPIAN

HORTICULTURE PRODUCER EXPORTERS ASSOCIATION (EHPEA)

IFB N°: **PRQ20240183** 

1. The *TradeMark Africa* has received¹ funds from the Agence Française de Développement (the French Development Agency) towards the cost of *The Supply and Installation of ICT Infrastructure for The Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA).* It is intended that part of the proceeds of these funds will be applied to eligible payments under the contract ² for *The Supply and Installation of ICT Infrastructure for The Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA).* 

- 2. The *TradeMark Africa* now invites sealed bids from eligible bidders for the procurement of *The Supply and Installation of ICT Infrastructure for The Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA)* ("the Goods").
- 3. Interested eligible bidders may obtain further information from and inspect the Bidding Documents at the <a href="www.trademarkafrica.com">www.trademarkafrica.com</a> at <a href="TradeMark Africa">TradeMark Africa</a> office, Elili International Hotel Building, 19th Floor, Kazanchis Business District, Guinea Conakry Street, Kirkos Sub-City, woreda 17/18, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia and inspect the Bidding Documents between the hours of 21st October 2024 on or before 11:00am EAT Time. The bids will be opened on 21st October 2024 at 11:10am EAT.
- 4. A complete set of Bidding Documents may be purchased by interested bidders on the submission of a written application to the above and upon payment of a non-refundable fee -N/A
- 5. The provisions in the Instructions to Bidders and in the General Conditions of Contract are the provisions of the Agence Française de Développement's *Bidding Documents for Procurement of Goods*.
- 6. Bids must be delivered to the above office<sup>3</sup> on or before 11:00AM EAT, 21 October 2024.
- 7. Bids will be opened in public and in the presence of bidders' representatives who choose to attend on 21 October 2024 at 11:10am EAT at the offices of *TradeMark Africa office, Elili International Hotel Building, 19th Floor, Kazanchis Business District, Guinea Conakry Street, Kirkos Sub-City, woreda 17/18, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia.*
- 8. Qualification criteria are as follows: The firm must possess the following qualifications: Must have previously executed similar projects and of similar scale or larger, Be an authorized supplier of the category of equipment. A manufacturer authorization form (MAF) must be provided as proof, Propose certified Engineers/Experts for the server equipment if bidding for the Servers lot, demonstrate experience in previously executing projects of a similar scale at least 2 assignments for Each Lot bid for in the last 5 years. Copies of proof i.e. letter of award and assignment completion MUST be provided. Additional details are provided in the Bidding Documents.

\_

Substitute "has applied for," if appropriate.

Substitute "contracts" where bids are called concurrently for multiple contracts. Add a new para. as follows: "Bidders may bid for one or several contracts, as further defined in the bidding documents. Bidders wishing to offer discounts in case they are awarded more than one contract will be allowed to do so, provided those discounts are included in the Bid Submission Form."

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Substitute the Purchaser's address for bid submission if different from its address for inquiry and issuance of bidding documents.

iv User's Guide

#### User's Guide on Incoterms

#### Incoterms 2010

#### **Extract from the International Chamber of Commerce**

#### http://store.iccwbo.org/incoterms

#### **CIP: Carriage and Insurance Paid To**

"Carriage and Insurance Paid to" means that the seller delivers the goods to the carrier or another person nominated by the seller at an agreed place (if any such place is agreed between parties) and that the seller must contract for and pay the costs of carriage necessary to bring the goods to the named place of destination.

'The seller also contracts for insurance cover against the buyer's risk of loss of or damage to the goods during the carriage. The buyer should note that under CIP the seller is required to obtain insurance only on minimum cover. Should the buyer wish to have more insurance protection, it will need either to agree as much expressly with the seller or to make its own extra insurance arrangements."

#### **Important observation regarding CIP:**

Incoterms defines the term "delivery" as the date and place where risk transfers from the seller to the buyer and is usually at the place where the goods are delivered to the first carrier. Although that concept is important, it is also important for the buyer to define "delivery" in a different way in order to have a useful Delivery Schedule showing the dates when the Goods arrive at the named place of destination. To accomplish this in these Bidding Documents for Goods, the term "delivery" from a risk point of view shall be defined as per Incoterms. In all other respects the term "delivery" shall be interpreted as the date when the Goods arrive at the named place of destination. In this manner, the Delivery Schedule will have meaningful dates for the buyer but will not affect the concept of the transfer of risk. It is also worth noting that Incoterms does not deal with the transfer of title to the Goods.

#### **DDP: Delivered Duty Paid**

"Delivered Duty Paid" means that the seller delivers the goods when the goods are placed at the disposal of the buyer, cleared for import on the arriving means of transport ready for unloading at the named place of destination. The seller bears all the costs and risks involved in bringing the goods to the place of destination and has an obligation to clear the goods not only for export but also for import, to pay any duty for both export and import and to carry out all customs formalities.

User's Guide v

#### **Schedule of Requirements**

#### Input of Information to be completed by Purchaser

This Section contains the Scope, the Specifications, the Drawings, Supplementary Information that describe the Goods and Related Services, as well as Forms to be used during the implementation of the contract.

To enable Bidders to submit responsive Bids and, subsequently, for the Bids received to be evaluated in an equitable manner, the Purchaser must make its Requirements as clearly and as precisely as possible. The Requirements must therefore, specify exactly the particular requirements of the completed Goods and Related Services. Where the performance of the supplied Goods and Related Services could be measured in quantitative terms, such as production outputs, or performance capacity, the Requirements should not only clearly specify the desired output/capacity but also the upper and lower acceptable limits of deviation from the desired capacity, and how such deviations (if any) will be evaluated. It will also be necessary to specify the tests that will be carried out upon completion of the supply of the Goods and Related Services, to verify compliance with the Requirements specified. The Requirements should also clearly specify what associated, or incidental, services and goods must be supplied by the Supplier. For example, the Supplier may be required to train the Purchaser's personnel, and to supply consumables or spare parts, as listed in a Schedule.

While this Section of the Bidding Document should endeavour to define the Requirements as precisely as possible, care must be taken to avoid over-specifying details to the extent that the flexibility and potential benefits associated with a Goods and Related Services contract are seriously eroded, or threatened. This Section on Requirements should, therefore, be carefully prepared, on behalf of the Purchaser, by suitably-qualified specialists who are familiar with the Requirements and with the technical aspects of the required Goods and Related Services.

For any AFD-financed Goods and Related Services contract to be procured through International Procurement Competition procedures, the Requirements must be drawn up to permit the widest, possible competition and, at the same time, present a clear statement of the required standards of workmanship, materials and performance of the Facilities. Only if this is done will the objectives of economy and efficiency, equal opportunity, fairness and transparency in procurement, be realized, responsiveness of bids be ensured, and the subsequent task of bid evaluation facilitated. The Requirements should stipulate that all goods are new, unused, of the most recent or current models and incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials.

Where a brand name of a product is specified it should always be qualified with the terms "or equivalent".

#### **Notes for Preparing Technical Specifications**

vi User's Guide

The purpose of the Technical Specifications (TS) is to define the technical characteristics of the Goods and Related Services required by the Purchaser. The TS, as a part of the Requirements, are a part of the Contract. The Purchaser must prepare the TS and include them as a part of the Bidding Documents, as applicable to each Contract.

In preparing the TS, the Purchaser should consider the following:

- (a) Well-prepared TS will facilitate the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Bids by the Purchaser, as the TS constitute the benchmarks against which the Purchaser will verify the technical responsiveness of bids and subsequently evaluate the bids;
- (b) The TS should require that all Goods and materials to be incorporated in the Goods be new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided for otherwise in the contract;
- (c) The TS should make use of best practices. Samples of specifications from successful similar procurements in the same country or sector may provide a sound basis for drafting the TS;
- (d) Standardizing technical specifications under General Technical Specifications may be advantageous, depending on the complexity of the Goods and the repetitiveness of the type of procurement. Technical Specifications should be broad enough to avoid restrictions on workmanship, materials, and equipment commonly involved in manufacturing similar kinds of Goods, even if these may not necessarily apply to a particular procurement. Technical requirements for a particular procurement would be in each case specified through deletions or addenda to the Technical Specifications;
- (e) The specification of standards for equipment, materials, and workmanship shall not be restrictive. Recognized international standards should be specified as much as possible. When other standards or codes of practice are referred to in the TS, whether from the Purchaser's or from other countries, a statement should follow other authoritative standards that ensure at least a substantially equal quality, then the standards mentioned in the TS will also be acceptable;
- (f) Reference to brand names and catalogue numbers should be avoided as far as possible. But, where unavoidable, the words "or at least equivalent" shall always follow such references.

Technical Specifications shall be fully descriptive of the requirements in respect of, but not limited to, the following:

- (a) Standards of materials and workmanship required for the production and manufacturing of the Goods;
- (b) Detailed tests required (type and number);
- (c) Other additional work and/or Related Services required to achieve full delivery/completion;
- (d) Detailed activities to be performed by the Supplier, and participation of the Purchaser thereon;

User's Guide vii

(e) List of detailed functional guarantees covered by the Warranty and the specification of the liquidated damages to be applied in the event that such guarantees are not met.

The TS shall specify all essential technical and performance characteristics and requirements, including guaranteed or acceptable maximum or minimum values, as appropriate. Whenever necessary, the Purchaser shall include an additional ad-hoc bidding form (to be an Attachment to the Bid Submission Form), where the Bidder shall provide detailed information on such technical performance characteristics in respect to the corresponding acceptable or guaranteed values.

When the Purchaser requests that the Bidder provides in its Bid a part or all of the Technical Specifications, technical schedules, or other technical information, the Purchaser shall specify in detail the nature and extent of the required information and the manner in which it has to be presented by the Bidder in its Bid.

viii User's Guide

#### **Guide for Preparing the Delivery and Completion Schedule**

The purpose of the Delivery and Completion Schedule (DCS) is to specify the delivery dates and places for the Goods, and the delivery places and completion dates for each of the Related Services, as listed in the List of Goods and Related Services. The DCS is a part of the Contract. The Purchaser must therefore prepare the DCS and include it as a part of the Requirements.

In preparing the DCS, the Purchaser should take into account the following:

- (a) The delivery and completion dates should be realistic. Unrealistically short delivery or completion expectations may result in restricted competition or may prompt complaints from prospective bidders;
- (b) The date or period for delivery should be carefully specified, taking into account that the delivery terms stipulated must be consistent:
  - (i) With the specificities of the Incoterms stipulated (refer to the above description of the main Incoterms);
  - (ii) With the date specified in the Contract for the start of the Purchaser's obligations (i.e., notice of award, Contract signature, opening or confirmation of a Letter of Credit for example);
  - (iii) When using the Incoterms "CIP" the Purchaser shall note that the term "delivery" when not dealing with the transfer of risk, shall refer to the date of arrival of the Goods to the named place of destination (See note on Incoterms above).

#### **Guide on Drawings**

The purpose of Drawings is to specify locations, dimensions, materials to be used, stages of manufacturing, and other characteristics of the Goods and Related Services. The Purchaser should prepare appropriate Drawings, as needed, and include them in the Bidding Documents. Such Drawings, as part of the Requirements, are part of the Contract. Similarly, the Purchaser may request the Supplier to provide Drawings either with its Bid, or for approval during Contract execution.

It is essential that the Purchaser prepare a **List of Drawings** showing all drawings it supplied and issued as part of the Bidding Documents.

#### **BIDDING DOCUMENTS**

for

Procurement of : The Supply and Installation of ICT Infrastructure for The Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA)

**Project:** Ethiopia

**Purchaser:** TradeMark Africa

**Country:** Ethiopia

Issued on: 04 September 2024

#### **Table of Contents**

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures	1
Section I. Instructions to Bidders	
Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	27
Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	31
Section IV. Bidding Forms	40
Section V. Eligibility Criteria	68
Section VI. AFD Policy - Prohibited Practices— environmental and social responsibility	71
PART 2 – Supply Requirements	73
Section VII. Schedule of Requirements	74
PART 3 - Contract	96
Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract	96
Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract	115
Section X. Contract Forms	

**PART 1 – Bidding Procedures** 

#### **Section I. Instructions to Bidders**

#### **Table of Clauses**

A.	General4
1.	Scope of Bid4
2.	Source of Funds4
3.	Prohibited Practices4
4.	Eligible Bidders4
5.	Eligible Goods and Related Services6
В.	Contents of Bidding Documents6
6.	Sections of Bidding Documents6
7.	Clarification of Bidding Documents7
8.	Amendment of Bidding Document7
C.	Preparation of Bids8
9.	Cost of Bidding8
10.	Language of Bid8
11.	Documents Comprising the Bid8
12.	Bid Submission Form, Bidding Forms and Statement of Integrity and Price Schedules9
13.	Alternative Bids9
14.	Bid Prices and Discounts9
15.	Currencies of Bid and Payment12
16.	Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Conformity of the Goods and Related Services12
17.	Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder13
18.	Period of Validity of Bids13
19.	,
20.	Format and Signing of Bid16
D.	Submission and Opening of Bids16
21.	Sealing and Marking of Bids16
22.	Deadline for Submission of Bids17
23.	Late Bids
24.	Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids17
25.	Bid Opening
Ε.	Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

26.	Confidentiality	19
27.	Clarification of Bids	19
28.	Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions	20
29.	Determination of Responsiveness	21
30.	Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions	21
31.	Correction of Arithmetical Errors	22
32.	Conversion to Single Currency	22
33.	Margin of Preference	22
34.	Evaluation of Bids	22
35.	Comparison of Bids	24
36.	Qualification of the Bidder	24
37.	Purchaser's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids	24
F. A	Award of Contract	24
38.	Award Criteria	24
39.	Purchaser's Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award	25
40.	Notification of Award	25
41.	Signing of Contract	25
42.	Performance Security	26

#### **Section I. Instructions to Bidders**

#### A. General

#### 1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1 In connection with the Invitation for Bids, specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Purchaser, as specified in the BDS, issues these Bidding Documents for the Procurement of Goods and Related Services incidental thereto as specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this International Procurement Competition (IPC) are specified in the BDS.
- 1.2 Throughout these Bidding Documents:
  - (a) The term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, telex) with proof of receipt;
  - (b) If the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa; and
  - (c) "Day" means calendar day.

#### 2. Source of Funds

- 2.1 The Purchaser **specified in the BDS** has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the Agence Française de Développement (hereinafter called "the AFD"), toward the project named **in BDS**. The Purchaser intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which these Bidding Documents are issued.
- 3. Prohibited Practices
- 3.1 The AFD requires compliance with its policy regarding prohibited practices as set forth in Section VI.
- 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause its agents (where declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers and to permit the AFD to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to the submission of the application, bid submission, and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the AFD.

#### 4. Eligible Bidders

4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a state-owned entity-subject to ITB 4.3- or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall

nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution.

- 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this bidding process, if the Bidder:
  - (a) Directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
  - (b) Receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
  - (c) Has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or
  - (d) Has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Purchaser regarding this bidding process; or
  - (e) Participates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which such Bidder is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor in more than one bid; or
  - (f) Any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the goods that are the subject of the bid; or
  - (g) Any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Purchaser for the Contract implementation; or
  - (h) Has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Purchaser (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the funds) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding documents or specifications of the contract, and/or the bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a

manner acceptable to the AFD throughout the procurement process and execution of the contract.

- 4.3 The AFD's eligibility criteria to bid are described in Section V, Eligibility criteria.
- 4.4 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from bidding by the Purchaser as the result of the execution of a Bid–Securing Declaration.
- 4.5 A Bidder shall provide such evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request.

## 5. Eligible Goods and 5.1 Related Services

- All the Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the AFD may have their origin in any country in accordance with Section V, Eligibility Criteria.
- 5.2 For purposes of this Clause, the term "goods" includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and "related services" includes services such as insurance, installation, training, and initial maintenance.
- 5.3 The term "origin" means the country where the goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured or processed; or, through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

#### **B.** Contents of Bidding Documents

# 6. Sections Bidding Documents

of 6.1 The Bidding Documents consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8.

#### **PART 1 - Bidding Procedures**

- Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB);
- Section II. Bidding Data Sheet (BDS);
- Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria;
- Section IV. Bidding Forms;
- Section V. Eligibility Criteria;
- Section VI. AFD Policy Prohibited Practices and Environmental and Social Responsibility;

#### **PART 2 - Supply Requirements**

Section VII. Schedule of Requirements;

#### **PART 3 - Contract**

- Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract (GCC);
- Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC);
- Section X. Contract Forms.
- 6.2 The Invitation for Bids issued by the Purchaser is not part of the Bidding Documents.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Purchaser, the Purchaser is not responsible for the completeness of the Bidding Documents, responses to requests for clarification or Addenda to the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Purchaser shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the Bidding Documents.
- 7. Clarification Bidding Documents
- of 7.1 A Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Documents shall contact the Purchaser in writing at the Purchaser's address **specified in the BDS**. The Purchaser will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received no later than 14 (fourteen) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. The Purchaser shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. If so **specified in the BDS**, the Purchaser shall also promptly publish its response at the web page **identified in the BDS**. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser shall amend the Bidding Documents following the procedure under ITB 8 and ITB 22.2.
- 8. Amendment
  Bidding
  Document
- of 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Purchaser may amend the Bidding Documents by issuing addenda.
  - 8.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Documents from the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 6.3. The

Purchaser shall also promptly publish the addendum on the Purchaser's web page in accordance with ITB 7.1.

8.3 To give Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, pursuant to ITB 22.2.

#### C. Preparation of Bids

#### 9. Cost of Bidding

9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

#### 10. Language of Bid

10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language **specified in the BDS**. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into the language **specified in the BDS**, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

# 11. Documents Comprising the Bid

11.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:

- (a) Bid submission Form and the Bidding Forms in accordance with ITB 12;
- (b) Completed schedules, in accordance with ITB 12 and 14;
- (c) Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with ITB 19.1;
- (d) Alternative bids, if permissible, in accordance with ITB 13;
- (e) Written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.2;
- (f) Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Environmental and Social Responsibility duly signed, in accordance with ITB 12;
- (g) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its Bid is accepted;

- (h) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to bid;
- (i) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16, that the Goods and Related Services to be supplied by the Bidder are of eligible origin;
- (j) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16 and 29, that the Goods and Related Services conform to the Bidding Documents;
- (k) Any other document **required in the BDS**.
- 11.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 11.1, bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.
- 11.3 The Bidder shall furnish in the Bid Submission Form information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid.
- 12. Bid Submission
  Form, Bidding
  Forms and
  Statement of
  Integrity and Price
  Schedules
  - 12.1 The Bid Submission Form, the Bidding Forms and the Statement of Integrity and Price Schedules shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.4. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
- 13. Alternative Bids
- 13.1. Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, alternative bids shall not be considered.
- 14. Bid Prices and Discounts
- and 14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Bid Submission Form and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified below.
  - 14.2 All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Price Schedules.
  - 14.3 The price to be quoted in the Bid Submission Form shall be the total price of the bid, excluding any discounts offered.

- 14.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Bid Submission Form.
- 14.5 Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, unless otherwise specified in the BDS. A bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as nonresponsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to ITB 29. However, if in accordance with the BDS, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a bid submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero.
- 14.6 If so specified in ITB 1.1, bids are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, prices quoted shall correspond to 100 % of the items specified for each lot and to 100% of the quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4 provided the bids for all lots (contracts) are opened at the same time.
- 14.7 The term CIP, DDP and other similar terms shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms, published by The International Chamber of Commerce, as specified in the BDS.
- 14.8 Prices shall be quoted as specified in each Price Schedule included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The disaggregation of price components is required solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of bids by the Purchaser. In quoting prices, the Bidder shall be free to use transportation through carriers registered in any eligible country, in accordance with Section V, Eligibility Criteria. Similarly, the Bidder may obtain insurance services from any eligible country in accordance with Section V, Eligibility Criteria. Prices shall be entered in the following manner:

#### (a) For Goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country:

 (i) The price of the Goods quoted CIP named place of destination, including all customs duties and sales and other taxes already paid or payable on the components

- and raw material used in the manufacture or assembly of the Goods; and
- (ii) Any Purchaser's Country sales tax and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder.
- (b) For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, to be imported:
  - (i) The price of the Goods, quoted CIP named place of destination, in the Purchaser's Country, as specified in the BDS; and
  - (ii) Any Purchaser's Country sales and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder.
- (c) For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported:
  - (i) The price of the Goods, quoted CIP named place of destination, excluding the custom duties and other import taxes already paid (need to be supported with documentary evidence) or to be paid on the Goods already imported;
  - (ii) All custom duties and other import taxes already paid (need to be supported with documentary evidence) or to be paid on the Goods already imported in the Purchaser's country, payable on the Goods, if the Contract is awarded to the Bidder;
  - (iii) Any Purchaser's Country sales and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder; and
- (d) For Related Services specified in Section VII Schedule of Requirements:
  - (i) The price of each item comprising the Related Services (exclusive of any applicable taxes);

(ii) All custom duties, sales and other taxes applicable in the Purchaser's country, payable on the Related Services, if the Contract is awarded to the Bidder.

- and Payment
- **15.** Currencies of Bid 15.1 The currency(ies) of the bid and the currency(ies) of payments shall be as specified in the BDS. The Bidder shall quote in the currency of the Purchaser's Country the portion of the bid price that corresponds to expenditures incurred in the currency of the Purchaser's country, unless otherwise specified in the BDS.
- 16. Documents Establishing the **Eligibility** and Conformity of the Goods and **Related Services**
- To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in 16.1 accordance with ITB 5, Bidders shall complete the country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 16.2 To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.3 The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- The Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including 16.4 available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods during the period **specified in the BDS** following commencement of the use of the goods by the Purchaser.
- 16.5 Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to the Purchaser's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.

- 17. Documents **Establishing** the **Eligibility** and Qualifications of the Bidder
- 17.1 To establish Bidder's their eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall complete the Bid Submission Form, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 17.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted shall establish to the Purchaser's satisfaction:
  - (a) That, if **required in the BDS**, a Bidder that does not manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply shall submit the Manufacturer's Authorization using the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms to demonstrate that it has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the Goods to supply these Goods in the Purchaser's Country;
  - That, if **required in the BDS**, in case of a Bidder not doing business (b) within the Purchaser's Country, the Bidder is or will be (if awarded the contract) represented by an Agent in the country equipped and able to carry out the Supplier's maintenance, repair and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications; and
  - (c) That the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- of Bids
- **18.** Period of Validity 18.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the BDS after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 22.1. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Purchaser as nonresponsive.
  - 18.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Purchaser may request bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB Clause 19, it shall also be extended for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the deadline of the extended validity period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.
  - 18.3 If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:

- (a) In the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the bid price adjusted by the factor specified in the BDS;
- (b) In the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made;
- (c) In any case, bid evaluation shall be based on the bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.

#### 19. Bid Security

- 19.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a bid security, as **specified in the BDS**, in original form and, in the case of a bid security, in the amount and currency **specified** in the BDS.
- 19.2 A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 19.3 If a bid security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the bid security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
  - (a) An unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or financial institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);
  - (b) An irrevocable letter of credit;
  - (c) A cashier's or certified check; or
  - (d) Another security **specified in the BDS**;

from a reputable source from an eligible country as specified in Section V, Eligibility Criteria. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a financial institution located outside the Purchaser's Country, the issuing financial institution shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser's Country to make it enforceable. In the case of a bank guarantee, the bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the Purchaser prior to bid submission. The bid security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original validity period of the bid, or beyond any period of extension if requested under ITB 18.2.

- 19.4 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
- 19.5 The Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 42.
- 19.6 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the contract and furnished the required performance security.
- 19.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid Securing Declaration executed:
  - (a) If a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Submission Form, or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder; or
  - (b) If the successful Bidder fails to:
    - (i) Sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or
    - (ii) Furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 42.
- 19.8 The Bid Security or Bid- Securing Declaration of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of bidding, the Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 11.2.
- 19.9 If a bid security is **not required in the BDS**, pursuant to ITB 19.1, and:
  - (a) If a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Submission Form, or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder; or
  - (b) If the successful Bidder fails to: sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 42;

the Purchaser may, **if provided for in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Purchaser for a period of time **as stated in the BDS**.

# 20. Format and Signing of Bid

- 20.1The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as described in ITB 11 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL." Alternative bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, shall be clearly marked "ALTERNATIVE." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the bid, in the number **specified in the BDS** and clearly mark them "COPY." In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 20.2 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall be attached to the bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the bid.
- 20.3 In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of bidding, then the Bid shall be signed by every member of the proposed JV.
- 20.4 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the bid.

#### D. Submission and Opening of Bids

## 21. Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 21.1 The Bidder shall enclose the original and all copies of the bid, including alternative bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, in separate sealed envelopes, duly marking the envelopes as "ORIGINAL", "ALTERNATIVE" and "COPY". These envelopes containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one single envelope.
- 21.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
  - (a) Bear the name and address of the Bidder;
  - (b) Be addressed to the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 22.1;
  - (c) Bear the specific identification of this bidding process indicated in ITB 1.1; and

- Bear a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening.
- 21.3 If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Purchaser will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.
- 22. Deadline Submission **Bids**

of

- for 22.1 Bids must be received by the Purchaser at the address and no later than the date and time specified in the BDS. When so specified in the BDS, bidders shall have the option of submitting their bids electronically. Bidders submitting bids electronically shall follow the electronic bid submission procedures specified in the BDS.
  - 22.2 The Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Purchaser and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.
- 23. Late Bids
- 23.1. The Purchaser shall not consider any bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 22. Any bid received by the Purchaser after the deadline for submission of bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of **Bids**
- 24.1 A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (the power of attorney) in accordance with ITB 20.2. The corresponding substitution or modification of the bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
  - (a) Prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 20 and 21 (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL," "SUBSTITUTION," or "MODIFICATION"; and
  - Received by the Purchaser prior to the deadline prescribed for (b) submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 22.
- 24.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.
- 24.3 No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the

period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Submission Form or any extension thereof.

#### 25. Bid Opening

- 25.1 Except as in the cases specified in ITB 23 and 24, the Purchaser shall publicly open and read out in accordance with ITB 25 all bids received by the deadline (regardless of the number of bids received), at the date, time and place **specified in the BDS** in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted, in accordance with ITB 22.1, shall be as **specified** in the BDS.
- 25.2 First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at bid opening. Next, envelopes marked "Substitution" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at bid opening. Envelopes marked "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening. Only bids that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further.
- 25.3 All other envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid Prices, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative bids; the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, if required; and any other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate. Only discounts and alternative bids read out at Bid opening shall be considered for evaluation. The Bid Submission Form and the Price Schedules are to be initialed by a minimum of three representatives of the Purchaser attending bid opening. The Purchaser shall neither discuss the merits of any bid nor reject any bid (except for late bids, in accordance with ITB 23.1).
- 25.4 The Purchaser shall prepare a record of the bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a

withdrawal, substitution, or modification; the Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts, and alternative bids; and the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, if one was required. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders.

#### E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

#### 26. Confidentiality

- 26.1 Information relating to the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the bids, and qualification of the Bidders and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the bidding process until information on Contract Award is communicated to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 40.
- 26.2 Any attempt by a Bidder to influence the Purchaser in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the bids, and qualification of the bidders, or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 26.3 Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Purchaser on any matter related to the bidding process, it shall do so in writing.

## 27. Clarification Bids

- of 27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison of the bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid, given a reasonable time for a response. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in response to a request by the Purchaser shall not be considered. The Purchaser's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Purchaser in the Evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB 31.
  - 27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date and time set in the Purchaser's request for clarification, its Bid may be rejected.

# 28. Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions

- 28.1 During the evaluation of bids, the following definitions apply:
  - (a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents;
  - (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; and
  - (c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the Bidding Documents.

## 29. Determination of Responsiveness

- 29.1 The Purchaser's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself, as defined in ITB 11.
- 29.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Documents without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
  - (a) If accepted, would:
    - (i) Affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Goods and Related Services specified in the Contract; or
    - (ii) Limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the proposed Contract; or
  - (b) If rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
- 29.3 The Purchaser shall examine the technical aspects of the bid submitted in accordance with ITB 16, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII, Schedule of Requirements have been met without any material deviation or reservation, or omission.
- 29.4 If a bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Documents, it shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

# 30. Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions

- 30.1 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may waive any nonmaterial nonconformities in the Bid.
- 30.2 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities in the bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such nonconformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 30.3 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this

effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component.

# 31. Correction Arithmetical Errors

of 31.1 Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:

- (a) If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Purchaser there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
- (b) If there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
- (c) If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 31.2 Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 31.1 shall result in the rejection of the Bid.
- 32. Conversion to Single Currency
- 32.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted in a single currency as **specified in the BDS**.
- 33. Margin
  Preference
- of 33.1 Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, a margin of preference shall not apply.
- 34. Evaluation of Bids
- 34.1 The Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Clause. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.
- 34.2 To evaluate a Bid (evaluation will be done for Items or Lots (contracts), as **specified in the BDS)**, the Purchaser shall consider the following:
  - (a) The Bid Price as quoted in accordance with clause 14;
  - (b) Price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 31.1;

- (c) Price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.4;
- (d) Price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 30.3;
- (e) Converting the amount resulting from applying (a) to (d) above, if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 32;
- (f) The additional evaluation factors as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 34.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in bid evaluation.
- 34.4 If these Bidding Documents allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated price of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Bid Submission Form, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- 34.5 The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid will exclude and not take into account:
  - In the case of Goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the goods if a contract is awarded to the Bidder;
  - (b) In the case of Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported or to be imported, customs duties and other import taxes levied on the imported Good, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder;
  - (c) In the case of Related Services, customs duties and sales and other similar taxes that will be payable on the Related Services if the contract is awarded to the Bidder;
  - (d) Any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the bid.
- 34.6 The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid may require the consideration of other factors, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB
   14. These factors may be related to the characteristics, performance, and terms and conditions of purchase of the Goods and Related

Services. The effect of the factors selected, if any, shall be expressed in monetary terms to facilitate comparison of bids, unless otherwise specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The criteria and methodologies to be used shall be as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

- 34.7 If the bid, which results in the lowest Evaluated Bid Price, is significantly lower than the Purchaser's estimate, the Purchaser shall require the Bidder to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the Price Schedules, to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the supply requirements and the method and schedule proposed. If one or several inconsistencies are evidenced, the bid shall be declared non-compliant and rejected.
- 35. Comparison of 35.1 The Purchaser shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially **Bids** responsive bids established in accordance with ITB 34.2 to determine the lowest evaluated bid.
- 36. Qualification 36.1 The Purchaser shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive bid meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
  - 36.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17.
  - 36.3 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the bid, in which event the Purchaser shall proceed to the next lowest evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.
- **37.** Purchaser's Right 37.1 The Purchaser reserves the right to annul the bidding process and reject to Accept Any Bid, all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring and to Reject Any any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all bids submitted and or All Bids specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

#### F. Award of Contract

38. Award Criteria 38.1 Subject to ITB 37.1, the Purchaser shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose bid has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, provided

further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

## to Vary Quantities at Time of Award

**39.** Purchaser's Right 39.1 At the time the Contract is awarded, the Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of Goods and Related Services originally specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements, provided this does not exceed the percentages specified in the BDS, and without any change in the unit prices or other terms and conditions of the bid and the Bidding Documents.

#### 40. Notification **Award**

of 40.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Purchaser shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Purchaser will pay the Supplier in consideration of the supply of Goods (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called "the Contract Price"). At the same time, the Purchaser shall also notify all other Bidders of the results of the bidding.

- 40.2 Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.
- 40.3 The Purchaser shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after notification of award in accordance with ITB 40.1, requests in writing the grounds on which its bid was not selected.

### 41. Signing **Contract**

- 41.1 Promptly after notification, the Purchaser shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.
  - 41.2 Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Purchaser.
  - 41.3 Notwithstanding ITB 41.2 above, in case signing of the Contract Agreement is prevented by any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, where such export restrictions arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, the Bidder shall not be bound by its bid, always provided however, that the Bidder can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the AFD that signing of the Contact Agreement has not been prevented by any lack of diligence on the part of the Bidder in completing any formalities, including applying for permits, authorizations

and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract.

# **42.** Performance Security

- 42.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Purchaser, the successful Bidder shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, or another Form acceptable to the Purchaser. If the Performance Security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Purchaser. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser's Country.
- 42.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security or execution of the Bid-Securing Declaration. In that event the Purchaser may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder, whose bid is substantially responsive and is determined by the Purchaser to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

Section II. Bid Data Sheet

## Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

The following specific data for the goods to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

ITB Clause Reference	A. General					
ITB 1.1	The number of the Invitation for Bids is: PRQ20240283					
ITB 1.1	The Purchaser is: TradeMark Africa					
ITB 1.1	The name and identification number of the IPC are N/A					
ITB 2.1	The name of the Project is: The Supply and Installation of ICT Infrastructure for The Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA).					
	B. Contents of Bidding Documents					
ITB 7.1	For <u>clarification of bid purposes</u> only, the Purchaser's address is: Attention: Joe Namwaya, Electronic mail address: <u>procureemnt@trademarkafrica.com</u>					
ITB 7.1	Web page: www.trademarkafrica.com					
	C. Preparation of Bids					
ITB 10.1	The language of the bid is English.  All correspondence exchange shall be in the English language. Language for translation of supporting documents and printed literature is English.					
ITB 11.1 (k)	The Bidder shall submit the following additional  a. The applicable price forms,  b. The Manufacturer's Authorization established  c. letter of award and assignment completion MUST be provided.					
ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.					

ITB 14.5	The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not "be adjustable.						
ITB 14.6	N/A						
ITB 14.7	The Incoterms edition is Incoterms 2010. However, the definition of the place and date associated with "delivery" is modified as follows:						
	(a) Under "CIP" Incoterms defines "delivery" as the place and date where risk transfers from the seller to the buyer;						
	(b) In these Bidding Documents, when using "CIP" and not referring to the transfer of risk, the term "delivery" shall be interpreted as the date and place where the Goods and Related Services arrive at the named place of destination, and this date should be reflected in the Delivery and Completion Schedule.						
ITB 14.8 (b) (i)	Named Place of Destination: Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA)						
ITB 15.1	The prices shall be quoted by the bidder in: USD						
ITB 16.4	Period of time the Goods are expected to be functioning (for the purpose of spare parts): 2 years						
ITB 17.2 (a)	Manufacturer's authorization is: Required						
ITB 17.2 (b)	After sales service is: Required						
ITB 18.1	The bid validity period shall be 120 days.						
ITB 18.3 (a)	The bid price shall be adjusted by the following factor: N/A						
ITB 19.1	A Bid Security is not required.						
	A Bid-Securing Declaration is not required.						
ITB 19.3 (d)	Other types of acceptable securities: N/A						
ITB 19.9	N/A						
ITB 20.1	In addition to the original of the bid, the number of copies is: <b>2</b> Copies						

Section II. Bid Data Sheet

ITB 20.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of: "a power of attorney established in the name of the signatory of the bid"								
	D. Submission and Opening of Bids								
ITB 22.1	For bid submission purposes, the Purchaser's address is:								
	Street: Elili International Hotel Building								
	Floor /Office Number: 19th Floor, Kazanchis Business District, Guinea Conakry Street, Kirkos Sub-City, woreda 17/18,								
	City: Addis Ababa								
	Country: Ethiopia								
	he deadline for the submission of bids is:								
	Date: 21 October 2024								
	Time: 11:00AM EAT								
ITB 22.1	Bidders shall not have the option of submitting their bids electronically.								
ITB 25.1	The bid opening shall take place at:								
	Street: Elili International Hotel Building								
	Floor /Office Number: 19th Floor, Kazanchis Business District, Guinea Conakry Street, Kirkos Sub-City, woreda 17/18,								
	City: Addis Ababa								
	Country: Ethiopia								
	Date: 21 October 2024								
	Time: 11:10AM EAT								
	No minimum number of bids is required in order to proceed to bid opening.								
	E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids								
ITB 32.1	The currency that shall be used for bid evaluation and comparison purposes to convert all bid prices expressed in different currencies into a single currency is: <b>USD</b>								
	The source of exchange rate shall be: National Bank of Ethiopia								
	The date for the exchange rate shall be 21 October 2024								

ITB 33.1	A margin of domestic preference shall not apply.						
	If domestic preference shall be a bid-evaluation factor, the application methodology shall be specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.						
ITB 34.2	Evaluation will be done for: Bids will be evaluated for each Lot and the Contract will comprise the item(s) on each Lot awarded to the successful Bidder.						
	F. Award of Contract						
ITB 39.1	The maximum percentage by which quantities may be increased is: <i>N/A</i> The maximum percentage by which quantities may be decreased is: <i>N/A</i>						

### **Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria**

This Section complements the Instructions to Bidders. It contains the criteria that the Purchaser may use to evaluate a bid and determine whether a Bidder has the required qualifications. No other criteria shall be used.

#### Contents

1.	Evaluation (ITB 34)	32
2.	Qualification (ITB 36)	35
3.	Domestic Preference (ITB 33)	39

#### 1. Evaluation (ITB 34)

### 1.1 Evaluation Criteria (ITB 34.6)

The Purchaser's evaluation of Bids for Goods may take into account, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB Clause 14.8, one or more of the following factors as specified in ITB Sub-Clause 34.2 (f), using the following criteria and methodologies.

(a) **Delivery Schedule** (option to be selected only if a loss for deliveries later than the Earliest Delivery Date is substantiated and can be materialised in financial loss for the Purchaser)

The Goods specified in the List of Goods are required to be delivered within the acceptable time range (after the earliest and before the final date, both dates inclusive) specified in Section VII, Delivery Schedule. No credit will be given to deliveries before the earliest date, and bids offering delivery after the final date shall be treated as non-responsive. Within this acceptable period, an adjustment will be added, for evaluation purposes only, to the bid price of bids offering deliveries later than the "Earliest Delivery Date" specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements – Delivery Schedule as follows: [insert amount] per [specify week or month]. [as an example, 0.5% of the bid price per week]

(b) Cost of major replacement components, and mandatory spare parts (option to be considered only if a list of components and spare parts is included in the List of Goods of Section VII – Schedule of Requirements)

[Preferable option]

The list of items and quantities of major assemblies, components, and selected spare parts, likely to be required during the initial period of operation specified in the BDS sub-clause 16.4 is in the List of Goods. An adjustment equal to the total cost of these items, at the unit prices quoted in each Bid, shall be added to the Bid Price, for evaluation purposes only.

#### OR

The list of items of major assemblies, components, and selected spare parts, likely to be required during the initial period of operation specified in the BDS sub-clause 16.4 is in the List of Goods. The quantities provided by the Bidder shall be evaluated against the recommendations of the user's manuals provided by the Good's manufacturers.

(c) Operating and/or Maintenance Costs (option to be included only if a period of operation and/or maintenance is included in the contract, specified in the Technical Specifications, and priced competitively)

An adjustment to take into account the extended operating and/or maintenance costs of the Goods will be added to the Bid Price, for evaluation purposes only. The adjustment will be calculated by:

(i) Aggregating the operating and/or maintenance average annual rate priced by the Bidder in its Bid over a period of [insert number of years] years;

OR

(ii) Determining the total Recurrent Costs using the following formula:

$$R \equiv \sum_{x=1}^{N+M} \frac{R_x}{(1+I)^x}$$

Where:

N = Number of years of operation and/or maintenance already included in the Contract;

M = Number of years additional to those of the Contract: [insert number of years];

x = An index number 1, 2, 3, ... N + M representing the total number of years to be taken into account in the bid evaluation with regards to operation and/or maintenance costs;

R<sub>x</sub> = Total Recurrent Costs for year "x," as provided by the Bidder in a specific Recurrent Cost Table. If no Table is provided, the annual rate priced under the Contract shall be applied for each year;

Discount rate to be used for the Net Present Value calculation: [insert rate, usually between 5 and 10%].

# (d) **Performance and Productivity of the Equipment** (option to be used only for specific cases and requiring prior assessment by an expert team)

(i) An adjustment representing the capitalized losses over the life of the plant will be added to the Bid price for evaluation purposes. The adjustment will be based on the drop in the guaranteed performance or efficiency offered in the Bid below the norm of 100, using the methodology below: [insert methodology];

OR

(ii) An adjustment to take into account the productivity of the Goods offered in the Bid will be added to the bid Price, for evaluation purposes only. The adjustment will be evaluated based on the cost per unit of the actual productivity of the Goods offered in the Bid with respect to minimum required values, using the methodology below: [insert methodology].

### (e) Specific Additional Criteria

[Insert other specific additional criteria to be considered in the evaluation and specify the evaluation method]

## 1.2. Multiple Contracts (ITB 34.4)

The Purchaser shall award multiple contracts to the Bidder that offers the lowest evaluated combination of bids (one contract per bid) and meets the post-qualification criteria (this Section III, 2. Qualification (ITB 36)). N/A

### 2. Qualification (ITB 36)

After determining the lowest-evaluated bid in accordance with ITB 35.1, the Purchaser shall carry out the post qualification of the Bidder in accordance with ITB 36, using only the requirements specified. Requirements not included in the tables below shall not be used in the evaluation of the Bidder's qualifications.

Eligik No	oility and Qual	ification Criteria Requirement	Compliance Ro	equirements  Joint Venture (existing or inter All Parties Each Combined Member		nded) One Member	Documentation Submission Requirements
1. Eli	gibility						
1.1	Nationality	Nationality in accordance with ITB 4.3	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Forms ELI – 1.1 and 1.2, with attachments
1.2	Conflict of Interest	No conflicts of interest in accordance with ITB 4.2	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Bid Submission Form
1.3	AFD Eligibility	Not being ineligible for AFD financing, as described in ITB 4.3	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Statement of Integrity (appendix to Bid Submission Form)
1.4	State- owned Entity	Meets conditions of ITB 4.3	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Forms ELI – 1.1 and 1.2, with attachments

Eligik	oility and Qual	ification Criteria	Compliance Ro	equirements			Documentatio n
No	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture	(existing or inte	nded)	Submission
				All Parties	Each	One	Requirements
				Combined	Member	Member	
2. Hi	storical Contra	ct Non-Performance					
2.1	History of	Termination of a	Must meet	Must meet	Must meet	N/A	Form CON-2
	Non-	contract <sup>4</sup> did not	requirement	requirement	requirement		
	Performin	occur as a result	2	S	5		
	g Contracts	of Supplier					
		default in the past					
		5 years.					
2.2	Suspensio	Not under	Must meet	Must meet	Must meet	N/A	Bid Submission
	n Based on	suspension based	requirement	requirement	requirement		Form
	Execution	on execution of a					
	of Bid	Bid Securing					
	Securing	Declaration					
	Declaratio	pursuant to ITB					
	n by the	4.4 or withdrawal					
	Purchaser	of a Bid pursuant	f a Bid pursuant				
	or ITB 19.9.						
	withdrawa						
	I of the Bid						
	within Bid						
	validity						
2.3	Pending	All pending	Must meet	N/A	Must meet	N/A	Form CON – 2
	Litigation	litigation shall in	requirement		requirement		
		total not					
		represent more					
		than one hundred					
		percent (100%) of					
		the Bidder's net					
		worth and shall					
		be treated as					
		resolved against					
		the Bidder.					

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Non-performance shall include all terminations of contracts where (a) non-performance was not challenged by the supplier, including through referral to the dispute resolution mechanism under the respective contract, and (b) contracts that were so challenged but fully settled against the supplier. Non-performance shall not include contracts where Purchasers decision was overruled by the dispute resolution mechanism.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> This requirement also applies to contracts executed by the Bidder as JV member.

Eligik	oility and Qual	ification Criteria	Compliance Ro	equirements	quirements		Documentatio
No	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture	Joint Venture (existing or intended)		Submission
				All Parties	Each	One	Requirements
				Combined	Member	Member	
3. Financial Situation and Performance							
3.1	Financial	Submission of	Must meet	N/A	Must meet	N/A	Form FIN – 3.1,
	Capabilitie	audited balance	requirement		requirement		with
	s	sheets or if not					attachments
		required by the					
		law of the					
		Bidder's country,					
		other financial					
		statements					
		acceptable to the					
		Purchaser, for the					
		last 3 years to demonstrate the					
		current					
		soundness of the					
		Bidder's financial					
	position based on the following						
		criteria:					
	a) liquidity						
		ratio ≥ <b>1.1</b>					
		((Current Assets)					
		/ (Current					
		Liabilities) ≥ 1.1)					
		b) indebtednes					
		s ratio ≤ 80%					
		((Total Liabilities) x 100 / (Total					
		Assets) ≤ <b>80%)</b> ]					
3.2	Average	Minimum	Must meet	Must meet	Must meet	Must meet	Form FIN – 3.2
	Annual	average annual	requirement	requirement	twenty-five	forty	
	Supplier	supplier turnover	•		percent	percent	
	Turnover	of US\$ 30,000			(25%) of the	(40%) of the	
	[As an indication, the calculated as total certified payments received for				requirement	requiremen	
						t	
	specified	contracts in					
	amount	progress and/or					
	should	completed within					
	range	the last 3 years,					
	between	divided by 3 years					

Eligil	Eligibility and Qualification Criteria		Compliance Ro	Documentatio			
							n
No	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture	(existing or inte	nded)	Submission
				All Parties	Each	One	Requirements
				Combined	Member	Member	
	1.5 and 2						
	times the						
	estimated						
	annual						
	invoiced						
	amount						
	under the						
	current						
	Contract]						

Eligil	bility and Qual	ification Criteria	Compliance Ro	equirements			Documentatio
No	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture	(existing or inte	nded)	Submission
•				All Parties	Each	One	Requirements
				Combined	Member	Member	
4. Ex	perience						
4.1	Similar	A minimum	Must meet	Must meet	N/A	N/A	Form EXP 4.1
	Experience	number of	requirement	requirement			
		similar <sup>6</sup> contracts		8			
		specified below					
		that have been					
		satisfactorily and					
		substantially <sup>7</sup>					
		completed as					
		Supplier, or joint					
		venture member					
		in the last 3 years					
4.2	Specific	Availability at the	Must meet	Must meet	N/A	N/A	Form EXP 4.1
	Experience	bid submission	requirement	requirement			
		date in the					
		Purchaser's					
		Country of spare					
		parts and after					
		sales services					
		facilities in					
		operation for at					
		least 6 months for					
		the Goods					
		offered in the Bid <sup>9</sup>					

### 3. Domestic Preference (ITB 33): N/A

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> The similarity shall be based on the physical size, complexity, methods/technology and/or other characteristics described in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. Summation of number of small value contracts (less than the value specified under requirement) to meet the overall requirement will not be accepted.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Substantial completion shall be based on 80% or more completed under the contract.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> In the case of JV, the value of contracts completed by its members shall not be aggregated to determine whether the requirement of the minimum value of a single contract has been met. Instead, each contract performed by each member shall satisfy the minimum value of a single contract as required for single entity. In determining whether the JV meets the requirement of total number of contracts, only the number of contracts completed by all members each of value equal or more than the minimum value required shall be aggregated.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> An acceptable alternative to meet this requirement is the evidence by the Bidder of one successful experience in the past five (5) years of creating and operating for a period of time exceeding one year an after sales services facility in a foreign country.

## **Table of Forms**

Bid Submission Form41
Form ELI-1.1: Bidder Information Form47
Form ELI-1.2: Bidder's JV Information Form49
Form CON-2: Historical Contract Non-Performance, Pending Litigation and Litigation History50
Form FIN-3.1: Financial Situation and Performance52
Form FIN-3.2: Average Annual Turnover54
Form EXP-4.1: Experience55
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, to be Imported58
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, Already Imported59
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured in the Purchaser's Country61
Price and Completion Schedule - Related Services62
Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)64
Form of Bid-Securing Declaration66
Manufacturer's Authorization67

### **Bid Submission Form**

	e Bidd ress]	er shall	prepare	his Bid	Submissi	ion Form	on a Le	tterhead	paper spe	cifying	his nam	e and
							Dat	e:				
									Bid No.:			
									lo.:			
To:												
We,	the u	ndersig	ned, decla	are that	:							
(a)								_	Document		_	
(b)	We h	ave no	conflict o	f intere	st in acco	ordance v	vith ITB 4	1.2;				
(c)				•			_	•	chaser bas e with ITB		executio	n of a
(d)							_		in accorda g Goods: _			
(e)	The t	otal pri	ce of our	Bid, exc	luding ar	ny discou	nts offer	ed in item	n (f) below	is:		
	i)	In	case	of	only	one	lot,	total	price	of	the	Bid
	ii) iii)		ase of mu					um of all lo	ots)			
(f)	The c	discount	ts offered	and the	e method	lology fo	r their ap	plication	are:			
	i)	The	discounts	offered	d are: _							
	ii)	The	exact m	ethod	of calcul	ations to	detern		net price			on of

(g)		days from the date fixed for the bid
	us and may be accepted at any time before the	ding Documents, and it shall remain binding upon expiration of that period:
(h)		erformance security in accordance with ITB 42 of
(i)	We are not participating, as a Bidder, in more t with ITB 4.2(e), other than alternative bids sub-	han one bid in this bidding process in accordance mitted in accordance with ITB 13;
(j)		our written acceptance thereof included in your g contract between us, until a formal contract is
(k)		eserves the right to annul the bidding process and ward, without thereby incurring any liability to
(I)	We hereby certify that we have taken steps t behalf will engage in any type of fraud and corr	o ensure that no person acting for us or on our uption.
Nan	me of the Bidder*	
	me of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid	on behalf of the Bidder**
Title	le of the person signing the Bid	
Sign	nature of the person named above	
Date	te signed	day of

<sup>\*:</sup> In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

<sup>\*\*:</sup> Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid

#### **Appendix to Bid Submission Form**

## Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Environmental and Social Responsibility

Reference name of the Bid/Proposal/Contract signed 10	(the "Contract"
To:	(the "Contracting Authority"

- 1. We recognize and accept that Agence Française de Développement ("AFD") only finances the projects of the Contracting Authority subject to its own conditions, as set out in the Financing Agreement that directly or indirectly binds it to the Contracting Authority. The Contracting Authority retains exclusive responsibility for the preparation and implementation of the procurement process and performance of the Contract. Consequently, no legal exists between AFD and our company, our joint venture, and our subcontractors. The Contracting Authority may also mean the Client, Employer or Purchaser, as the case may be, for the procurement of works, goods, plants, equipment, consulting services, or non-consulting services.
- 2. We hereby certify that neither we, nor any person acting on our behalf, <sup>11</sup> nor any of the members of our joint venture, nor any of our subcontractors, are in any of the following situations:
  - 2.1 Being bankrupt, wound up or ceasing our activities, having our activities administered by the courts, having entered into receivership, or being in any analogous situation arising from any similar procedure;
  - 2.2 Having been, within the past five years, subject to a final administrative sanction, a final conviction issued by a competent authority, or any other non-court resolution<sup>12</sup> having notably an extinctive effect on public action, either (i) in the country where we are constituted, (ii) in the country of performance of the Contract, (iii) in the context of the procurement or performance of an AFD-financed Contract, (iv) pronounced by a European Union institution, or (v) pronounced by a competent authority in France, for:
    - a) Prohibited Practices, as defined in Article 6.1 below, or for any other offence committed in the context of the procurement or performance of a Contract (in the event of such sanction, conviction or non-court resolution, we may attach additional information to this Statement of Integrity, such as a compliance program, showing that we (or the person acting on our behalf, the member of our joint venture, or our subcontractor) consider that this sanction, judgement or non-court resolution is not relevant in the context of the Contract, where applicable);

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> In the case of a Contract already signed to be refinanced.

Directors, (including any person who is a member of the administrative management or supervisory body, or with powers of representation, decision or control), employees, or agents (be them declared or not).

Including the Judicial Public Interest Agreement (CJIP), a decision following an Appearance on Prior Recognition of Guilt (CPRC), a negotiated resolution agreement, or any other similar form of transaction terminating criminal proceedings.

- b) Participation in a criminal organization, terrorist offences or offences related to terrorist activities, child labor, or other offences related to human trafficking;
- c) Having created an entity in a different jurisdiction (i) with the the intention of avoiding tax or social obligations, or any other legal obligation applicable in the jurisdiction of its registered office, central administration or principal place of business, or (ii) for being an entity created with the intention of avoiding such obligations;
- 2.3 Having been subject within the past five years to a Contract termination fully settled against us for significant or persistent breach of our contractual obligations during the performance of the Contract, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against us;
- 2.4 Having been declared ineligible by one of the multilateral development banks signatories to the Mutual Recognition Agreement of 9 April 2010<sup>13</sup> (in the event of such ineligibility, we may attach additional information to this Statement of Integrity showing that we consider that such ineligibility is not relevant in the context of the Contract, where applicable);
- 2.5 Not having fulfilled our fiscal obligations relating to the payments of our taxes or social contributions in accordance with the legal provisions of our country of incorporation or of the country of the Contracting Authority;
- 2.6 Having created falsified documents or committed misrepresentation when providing the information requested by the Contracting Authority in the context of the procurement and award process for this Contract.
- 3. We hereby certify that neither we, nor any party acting on our behalf<sup>14</sup>, nor any members of our joint venture, , , nor any of our subcontractors, nor any of our direct or indirect shareholders, nor any of our subsidiaries acting with our knowledge or consent:
  - a. Are directly or indirectly subject to, controlled by a person or an entity subject to, or acting in the name or on behalf of a person or entity subject to **individual sanctions measures** adopted by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France;
  - b. Are directly or indirectly subject to, controlled by a person or an entity subject to, or acting in the name or on behalf of a person or entity subject to **sectoral sanctions measures** adopted by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France;
  - c. Are ineligible for the implementation of the Project owing to any other international sanctions measures pronounced by the United Nations, the European Union or France.
- 4. We hereby certify that neither we, nor any party acting on our behalf,<sup>2</sup> nor any of the members of our joint venture, nor any of our subcontractors, are [nor have been (in the case of refinancing for a Contract already awarded)] in any of the following situations of conflict of interest:

World Bank, Inter-American Development Bank, African Development Bank, Asian Development Bank, and European Bank for Reconstruction and Development.

Directors, (including any person who is a member of the administrative management or supervisory body, or with powers of representation, decision or control), employees or agents (be them declared or not).

- 4.1 Being a shareholder controlling the Contracting Authority or a subsidiary controlled by the Contracting Authority, unless the resulting conflict of interest has been brought to the attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction.
- 4.2 Having business or family relations with a member of the Contracting Authority's services involved in the procurement process or the supervision of the resulting Contract, unless the resulting conflict of interest has been brought to the attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction;
- 4.3 Controlling or being controlled by another applicant, bidder or consultant, or being under common with another applicant, bidder or consultant, receiving subsidies from another applicant, bidder or consultant, or granting subsidies to another applicant, bidder or consultant, directly or indirectly, having the same legal representative as another applicant, bidder or consultant, maintaining direct or indirect contacts with another applicant, bidder or consultant allowing us to (i) have given and/or give access to information contained in our respective applications, bids or proposals likely to distort competition (ii) influence them, or (iii) influence the decisions of the Contracting Authority;
- 4.4 Being engaged for a consulting services mission which, by its nature, is or may be in conflict with the mission envisaged for the Contracting Authority;
- 4.5 Having prepared ourselves, being or having been associated with a natural or legal person who has prepared, specifications, terms of reference or other documents that have been used for the procurement process in question, and that contain provisions likely to favor an application, bid or proposal;
- 4.6 Having or having had access to, having prepared ourselves, being or having been associated with a natural or legal person who has or has had access to or prepared, specifications, plans, calculations, studies, or other documents that have not been communicated to all the applicants, bidders or consultants in the context of the present procurement procedure, and which thereby confer us an unfair competitive advantage;
- 4.7 In the case of a procurement procedure for works, plants, equipment or goods, having been selected ourselves or proposed to be selected (or any of our subsidiary companies having been or being proposed to be selected) to carry out supervision or inspection of the services in the context of this Contract.
- If we are a state-owned entity or a public enterprise, to participate in a competitive procurement process, we certify that we have legal and financial autonomy and that we operate under commercial laws and regulations.
- 6. In the context of the procurement and performance of the Contract:
  - 6.1 Neither we, nor any party acting on our behalf, nor any members of our joint venture, nor any of our subcontractors, have committed or shall commit a Prohibited Practice as defined

- in the document entitled "AFD Group's Policy to Prevent and Combat Prohibited Practices" available on AFD's Website. 15
- 6.2 Neither we, nor or any party acting on our behalf, 2 nor any members of our joint venture, nor any of our subcontractors, shall acquire or provide [have acquired or provided (in the case of refinancing for a Contract already awarded)] in sectors subject to an embargo by the United Nations, the European Union or France.
- 7. We hereby undertake to, and we undertake to ensure that any party acting on our behalf,<sup>2</sup> any members of our joint venture, and any of our subcontractors undertake to:
  - 7.1 Comply with the environmental standards recognized by the international community, including the international conventions for the protection of the environment and, in particular, take all reasonable steps to avoid or limit negative effects on vegetation, biodiversity, soils, groundwater and surface water, and on persons and property resulting from pollution, noise, vibration, traffic and other effects resulting from our activities, in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable in the country of performance of the Contract.
  - 7.2 Implement measures to mitigate environmental and social risks when they are indicated in the environmental and social management plan provided by the Contracting Authority, and ensure that the emissions, surface discharge and effluents produced by our activities respect the limits, specifications or requirements applicable to the Contract.
  - 7.3 Respect the rights of workers related to wages, working hours, rest periods and vacations, overtime, minimum age, regular payments, compensation and benefits, in accordance with the standards recognized by the international community, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organization (ILO), in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable in the country of performance of the Contract; indicate these elements in a document annexed to the employment contracts of our employees and made available to the Contracting Authority; and respect and facilitate the rights of workers to organize themselves and set up a complaints management mechanism for direct or indirect workers.
  - 7.4 Implement practices for non-discrimination and equal opportunities, and ensure the prohibition of child labor and forced labor.
  - 7.5 Keep a record for each member of the local staff recording the hours worked by each person, the type of work, the wages paid and the training undertaken, and ensure that these records are available at all times to be inspected by the Contracting Authority and the authorized representatives of the government, in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable to the protection of personal data in the country of performance of the Contract.
- 8. We, any party acting on our behalf,<sup>2</sup> the members of our joint venture, our subcontractors, our direct or indirect shareholders, and our subsidiaries, authorize AFD to conduct investigations and,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> For informational purposes, this policy can be accessed *via* the following link: <a href="https://www.afd.fr/en/combating-corruption">https://www.afd.fr/en/combating-corruption</a>.

in particular, inspect the documents and accounting records relating to the procurement and performance of the Contract, including, but not limited to, our internal processes and rules related to the respect of international sanctions pronounced by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France, and to have them verified auditors appointed by AFD.

9. We declare that we have paid, or that we shall pay, the commissions, benefits, fees, gratuities or charges relating to the procurement procedure or the performance of the Contract to the following third party/parties (for example, an intermediary/agent)(\*):

Name of beneficiary	Contact details	Purpose	Amount (indicate the currency)

10. We undertake to promptly inform the Contracting Authority, which shall inform AFD, of any change of circumstance regarding the sections above, including in case of any sanctions or embargo measures adopted by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France, after we have signed the present Statement.

Name:		In the capac	ity of:			
Duly empo	wered to sign in the	name and on behalf	of: <sup>16</sup>			
Signature:						
Form				ELI-1.1:		
Bidder Info	ormation Form					
Date:						
IPC	No.	and	title:			
Page	of	pages				
Bidder's n	ame					
In case of	Joint Venture (JV), na	ame of each member:				
Bidder's ac	tual or intended coun	try of constitution:				
[indicate	[indicate country of Constitution]					
Bidder's ac	tual or intended year	of constitution:				

<sup>(\*):</sup> If no amount has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "None".

In the case of a joint venture, insert the name of the joint venture. The person signing the bid, proposal or application on behalf of the bidder, consultant or applicant, shall attach a power of attorney from such bidder, consultant or applicant.

Bidder's legal address [in country of constitution]:
Bidder's authorized representative information
Name:
Address:
Telephone/Fax numbers:
E-mail address:
1. Attached are copies of original documents of
$\square$ Articles of Constitution (or equivalent documents of association) of the legal entity named above;
$\square$ In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1;
☐ In case of state-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.3 documents establishing:
a) Legal and financial autonomy;
b) Operation under commercial law;
c) Establishing that the Bidder is not dependent agency of the Purchaser.
2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

# Form ELI-1.2: Bidder's JV Information Form

(to be completed for each member of Bidder's  $\it JV$ )

Date	
Date: IPC No. and title:	
Page of pages	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Bidder's JV name:	
JV member's name:	
JV member's country of constitution:	
JV member's year of constitution:	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
N/ marshay's local address in sountry of constitution.	
JV member's legal address in country of constitution:	
JV member's authorized representative information	
Name:	
Address:	
Telephone/Fax numbers:	
E-mail address:	
1. Attached are copies of original documents of	
☐ Articles of Constitution (or equivalent documents of association) of the legal entity named above	⁄e;
☐ In case of a state-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing:	
a) Legal and financial autonomy;	
b) Operation in accordance with commercial law; and	
c) Absence of dependent status, in accordance with ITB 4.3.	
2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.	

Form CC	ON-2:		
Historica	al Contract Non-Perf	ormance, Pending Litigation and Litigation	n History
(to be co	ompleted by the Bidd	ler and by each member of the Bidder's JV	<i>(</i> )
Bidder's	Name:		
JV Mem	ber's Name		
IPC No. a	and title:	<del></del>	
Page	of	pages	
Non-Per	formed Contracts in	accordance with Section III, Evaluation and (	Qualification Criteria
in Se	ection III, Evaluation tract(s) not performe	ce did not occur since 1st January [insert of and Qualification Criteria, subclause 2.1. ed since 1st January [insert current year no cion Criteria, subclause 2.1	
Year	Non- performed portion of contract	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (currency value, currency exchange rate and US\$ equivalent)
[insert year]		Contract Identification: [indicate complete number, and any other identification]  Name of Purchaser: [insert full name]  Address of Purchaser: [insert street/city/code Reason(s) for non-performance: [indicate name]	untry]

Pending Litigation, in accordance with Section III, Qualification Criteria and Requirements				
$\square$ No pending litigation in accordance with Section III, Qualification Criteria and Requirements, subclau				
2.3.	2.3.			
☐ Pending litiga	ation in accordance with	n Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Crit	eria, subclause 2.3	
indicated bel	ow.			
Year of	Amount in dispute	Contract Identification	Total Contract	
dispute	(currency)		Amount	
			(currency), US\$	
			Equivalent	
			(exchange rate)	
		Contract Identification:		
		Name of Purchaser:		
		Address of Purchaser:		
		Matter in dispute:		
		Party who initiated the dispute:		
		Status of dispute:		

Bidder's Name: \_\_\_\_\_\_
Date: \_\_\_\_\_

# Form FIN-3.1: Financial Situation and Performance

JV Member's Name					
IPC No. and title:					
Pageof					
1. Financial data					
Type of Financial informat (currency)	ion in Histor	ic information fo	or previous	years,	
(carrency)	(amou	ınt in currency, o	currency, exchai	nge rate*, US\$	equivalent)
	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year4	Year 5
Statement of Financial Pos	sition (Informa	tion from Baland	ce Sheet)		
Total Assets (TA)					
Total Liabilities (TL)					
Total Equity/Net Worth (	NW)				
Current Assets (CA)					
Current Liabilities (CL)					
Working Capital (WC)					
Information from Income	Statement				
Total Revenue (TR)					
Profits Before Taxes (PBT	)				
	,				
Cash Flow Information					
Cash Flow from O	perating				

## 2. Financial documents

<sup>\*</sup>Refer to ITB 15 for the exchange rate

	der and its parties shall provide copies of financial statements foryear t Section III, Evaluation and Qualifications Criteria, Sub-factor 3.1. The financial statements shall:
(a)	Reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or in case of JV member, and not an affiliated entit (such as parent company or group member);
(b)	Be independently audited or certified in accordance with local legislation;
(c)	Be complete, including all notes to the financial statements;
(d)	Correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited.
	ched are copies of financial statements <sup>17</sup> for the years required above and plying with the requirements.

<sup>17</sup> If the most recent set of financial statements is for a period earlier than 12 months from the date of bid, the reason for this should be justified.

# Form FIN-3.2: Average Annual Turnover

Bidder's Name:		<del> </del>
Date:		_
JV Member's Name_		
IPC No. and title:		
Page	of	pages

	Annual turnover d	nover data		
Year	Amount	Exchange rate	US\$ equivalent	
	Currency			
[indicate year]	[insert amount and indica currency]	te		
Average				
Annual				
Turnover *				

<sup>\*</sup> See Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-Factor 3.2.

# Form EXP-4.1: Experience

Bidder's Legal Name: IV Member's Legal Name:			Date: IPC No.:		
Similar Contract No [insert specific number] of [total number of contracts] required  Contract Identification  Award date  Completion date  Role in Contract  Total contract amount  If member in a JV, specify participation in total contract amount  Purchaser's Name:  Address:  Telephone/fax number:			Page		
Similar Contract No [insert specific number] of [total number of contracts] required	Information				
Contract Identification					
Award date Completion date					_
Role in Contract					
Total contract amount				US\$ equivale	ent
If member in a JV, specify participation in total contract amount	%	6	US\$ equivalent		
Purchaser's Name:					
Address: Telephone/fax number: E-mail:					

# Form EXP – 4.1 (cont.) Experience (cont.)

Bidder's Legal Name:	Page	of	pages
JV Member's Legal Name:			

Similar Contract No [insert specific number] of [total number of contracts] required	Information
Description of the similarity in accordance with Sub-Factor 4.1 or 4.2 of Section III:	
Amount	
Physical size	
Complexity	
Methods/Technology	
Other Characteristics	

#### **Price Schedule Forms**

[The Bidder shall fill in these Price Schedule Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the **Price Schedules** shall coincide with the List of Goods and Related Services specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements.]

## Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, to be Imported

					(Group C bids,	goods to be importe		Date:
					Currencies in a	accordance with ITB	IPC No:	
					15			
								Alternative No:
							•	Page N° of
1	2		3	4	5	6	7	8
Line	Description	of	Country of	Delivery	Quantity and	Unit price	Sales and other taxes	Total Price per Line item
Item	Goods		Origin	Date at	physical unit	CIP [insert named	paid or payable per	(Col. 5x6)
N°				named		place of	item if Contract is	
				place of		destination]	awarded, in	
				destinatio		in accordance with	accordance with ITB	
				n		ITB 14.8(b)(i)	14.8(b)(ii)	
[insert	[insert name	of	[insert	[insert	[insert	[insert unit price	[insert sales and	[insert total price of the line
numbe	good]		country of	quoted	number of	CIP per unit]	other taxes paid or	item]
r of the			origin of	Delivery	units to be		payable per item if	
item]			the Good]	Date]	supplied and		Contract is awarded]	
					name of the			
					physical unit]			

Total Price	
-------------	--

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [Insert Date]

## Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, Already Imported

				(Group C b	oids, Goods a	Date: _ IPC No:	0:		
				Currencies	in accordan	ce with ITB Sub-	Alternati		
						of			
1	2		3	4	5	6	7	8	9
Line	Description o	f	Country	Delivery	Quantity	CIP Unit price	Custom Duties and	Sales and other taxes	Total Price per line item
Item	Goods		of Origin	Date at	and	excluding	Import Taxes paid	paid or payable per	(Col. 5x6)
N°				named	physical	Custom	per unit in	item if Contract is	
				place of	unit	Duties and	accordance with	awarded, in	
				destinati		Import Taxes	ITB 14.8(c)(ii), [to	accordance with ITB	
				on		paid, in	be supported by	14.8(c)(iii)	
						accordance	documents]		
						with ITB			
						14.8(c)(i)			

[insert	[insert name of	[insert	[insert	[insert	[insert	unit	[insert	custom	[insert sales and other	[insert total price per line
numbe	Goods]	country of	quoted	number of	price per	unit]	duties	and taxes	taxes payable per	item]
r of the		origin of	Delivery	units to be			paid pe	r unit]	item if Contract is	
item]		the Good]	Date]	supplied					awarded]	
				and name						
				of the						
				physical						
				unit]						
										Total Bid Price

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

## **Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured in the Purchaser's Country**

Purchaser's Country (Group A and B bids)							Date:
				Currencies in a	ccordance with ITB S	ub-Clause 15	IPC No:
						Alternative No:	
						- !	Page N° of
1	2	3	4	5	6*	7	8
Line Item	Description of	Delivery	Quantity	Unit price CIP	Cost of local labor,	Sales and other taxes	Total Price per line item
N°	Goods	Date at	and		raw materials,	payable per line item	(Col. 4 x 5)
		named	physical		transportation,	if Contract is awarded,	
		place of	unit		insurance and	in accordance with ITB $$	
		destinatio			components with	14.8(a)(ii)	
		n			origin in the		
					Purchaser's		
					Country		
					% of Col. 5		

[insert	[insert	name	of	[insert	[insert	[insert	CIP	[Insert cost of local	[insert sales and other	[insert total price per item]
number of	Good]			quoted	number of	unit price]		labor, raw	taxes payable per line	
the item]				Delivery	units to be			material,	item if Contract is	
				Date]	supplied			transportation,	awarded]	
					and name			insurance and		
					of the			components from		
					physical			within the		
					unit]			Purchase's country		
								as a % of the CIP		
								price per line item]		
					Total Price					

Only in case of Domestic Preference applies

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

## **Price and Completion Schedule - Related Services**

			Date:						
	Currencies in accordance with ITB Clause 15								No:
							Alternative		No:
							Page N°	 _ of	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8		

Section IV. Bidding Forms 63

Servic	Description	of	Country	of	Delivery		Quantity and	Unit Price net of	Duties and	Total Price per Service net of
e	Services		Origin		Date	at	physical unit	duties and	other taxes	duties and taxes
N°					named place	ce		applicable taxes,	payable per	(Col.5 x 6)
					of			in accordance	line item if	
					destination			with	Contract is	
								ITB 14.8 (d) (i)	awarded, in	
									accordance	
									with ITB	
									14.8(d)(ii)	
[insert	[insert name	of	[insert		[insert		[insert number	[insert unit price	[insert duties	[insert total price per item]
numbe	Services]		country	of	delivery da	te	of units to be	per item]	and other	
r of			origin of	the	at name	ed.	supplied and		taxes payable	
the			Services]		place	of	name of the		per line item if	
Servic					destination	1	physical unit]		Contract is	
e]									awarded]	
<u>                                     </u>							Total Bid Price			

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

### Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

[The	bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]
Bene	eficiary:
Invit	ation for Bids No:
Date	:
BID (	GUARANTEE No.:
Guar	rantor:
We h	nave been informed that (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has
	nitted or will submit to the Beneficiary its bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of under Invitation for Bids No ("the IFB").
	nermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary's conditions, bids must be supported bid guarantee.
any s us o dem	e request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of () upon receipt by f the Beneficiary's first demand, supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the and itself or a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that er the Applicant:
(a)	Has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity set forth in the Applicant's Bid Submission Form ("the Bid Validity Period"), or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant; or
(b)	Having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary during the Bid Validity Period or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant, (i) has failed to execute the contract agreement, or (ii) has failed to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Beneficiary's bidding document.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Applicant is the successful bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract agreement signed by the Applicant and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such contract agreement; or (b) if the Applicant is not the successful bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary's notification to the Applicant of the results of the bidding process; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the end of the Bid Validity Period.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.

#### Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]	[The Bidder shall	fill in this Form	in accordance with	h the instructions	indicated.
---	-------------------	-------------------	--------------------	--------------------	------------

Date: [date (as day, month and year)]
Bid No.: [number of bidding process]

Alternative No.: [identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [complete name of Purchaser]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the Purchaser for the period of time of [number of months or years] starting on [date], if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we:

- (a) Have withdrawn our Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid, or any extension thereto provided by us; or
- (b) Having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Purchaser during the period of bid validity or any extension thereto accepted by us, (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract; or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, if required in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid.

Name of the Bidder*		<u></u>	
Name of the person duly authorized to sign t	the Bid on behalf of	the Bidder**	
Title of the person signing the Bid			
Signature of the person named above			
Date signed	day of		

[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all members of the Joint Venture that submits the bid.]

<sup>\*:</sup> In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

<sup>\*\*:</sup> Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder attached to the Bid

#### Manufacturer's Authorization

[The Bidder shall require the Manufacturer to fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated. This letter of authorization should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Manufacturer. The Bidder shall include it in its bid, if so indicated in the **BDS.**]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]

IPC No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Purchaser]

#### **WHEREAS**

We [insert complete name of Manufacturer], who are official manufacturers of [insert type of goods manufactured], having factories at [insert full address of Manufacturer's factories], do hereby authorize [insert complete name of Bidder] to submit a bid the purpose of which is to provide the following Goods, manufactured by us:

[insert name and or brief description of the Goods],

and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty in accordance with Clause 28 of the General Conditions of Contract, with respect to the Goods offered by the above firm.

Signed: [insert signature(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer]

Name: [insert complete name(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer]

Title: [insert title]

Dated on \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_ [insert date of signing]

#### **Section V. Eligibility Criteria**

#### **Eligibility in AFD-Financed Procurement**

- 1. Financing allocated by AFD to a Contracting Authority has been entirely untied since 1<sup>st</sup> January 2002. To the exception of any equipment or any sector which is subject to an embargo by the United Nations, the European Union or France, all goods, works, plants, consulting services and non-consulting services are eligible for AFD financing regardless of the country of origin of the supplier, contractor, subcontractor, consultant or subconsultant inputs or resources used in the implementation processes. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.
- 2. A Person<sup>18</sup> may not be awarded an AFD-financed Contract if, on the date of submission of its Application, Bid, Proposal or Quotation, or at any time between this date and that of the corresponding Contract award, it or any of its subcontractors, Directors<sup>19</sup>, employees or agents (be it declared or not):
  - 2.1 Is bankrupt, being wound up or ceasing its activities, is having its activities administered by the courts, has entered into receivership, or is in any analogous situation arising from any similar procedure;
  - 2.2 Has, within the past five years, been subject to a final administrative sanction, a final conviction issued by a competent authority, or any other non-court resolution<sup>20</sup> having notably an extinctive effect on public action, either (i) in the country of constitution of the Person, (ii) in the country of performance of the Contract, (iii) in the context of the procurement or performance of an AFD-financed Contract, (iv) pronounced by a European Union institution or (v) pronounced by a competent authority in France, for:
    - a) Prohibited Practices<sup>21</sup>, or any other offence committed in the context of the procurement or performance of a Contract, subject to additional information, such as a compliance program, that such Person (or, respectively, their subcontractor, Director, employee or agent) may consider useful to provide in the context of the Statement of Integrity, that would give grounds to consider that this sanction, conviction or other resolution is not relevant in the context of the present Contract;
    - b) Participation in a criminal organization, terrorist offences or offences related to terrorist activities, child labor, or other offences related to human trafficking;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Means any natural or legal person, as well as any association or group of several such persons

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> Means any natural person who is a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of a legal entity, or who is vested with powers of representation, decision-making, or control over a legal entity.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup>Including the Judicial Public Interest Agreement (CJIP), a decision following an Appearance on Prior Admission of Guilt (CRPC), a negotiated resolution agreement, or any other similar form of transaction ending the proceedings.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> As defined in Section VI – AFD Policy – Prohibited Practices – environmental and social responsibility

- c) Having created an entity in a different jurisdiction with the intention of avoiding tax or social obligations, or any other legal obligation applicable in the jurisdiction where it has its registered office, its central administration or its principal place of business, or for being an entity created with the intention of avoiding such obligations;
- 2.3 Has been subject to a termination fully settled against it within the past five years due to a significant or persistent breach of its contractual obligations during the performance of a Contract, unless (i) such termination was challenged and (ii) dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against it.;
- 2.4 Has been declared ineligible by one of the multilateral development banks signatories to the Mutual Recognition Agreement of 9 April 2010.<sup>22</sup> In the event of such ineligibility, the Person may attach additional information to the Statement of Integrity that would give grounds to consider that this ineligibility is not relevant in the context of this Contract;
- 2.5 Has not fulfilled their obligations relating to the payment of their taxes or social contributions, in accordance with the legal provisions of their country of incorporation, or those of the country of the Contracting Authority;
  - 2.6 Has produced falsified documents or has been guilty of misrepresentation when providing the information requested by the Contracting Authority in the context of the procurement and award process for this Contract.
- 3. In addition, a Person may not be awarded an AFD-financed Contract if, on the date of submission of its Application, Bid, Proposal or Quotation, or at any time between this date and that of the corresponding Contract award, it or any of its subcontractors, Directors, employees, agents (be it declared or not), direct or indirect shareholders, or subsidiaries, acting with its knowledge or consent:
  - 3.1 Is directly or indirectly subject to, controlled by a person or an entity subject to, or acting in the name or on behalf of a person or entity subject to individual sanctions measures adopted by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France;
  - 3.2 Is directly or indirectly subject to, controlled by a person or an entity subject to, or acting in the name or on behalf of a person or entity subject to sectoral sanctions measures adopted by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France;
  - 3.3 Is ineligible for the implementation of the Project by way of any other international sanctions measures pronounced by the United Nations, the European Union or France.
- 4. State-owned entities may compete only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous, and (ii) operate under commercial law. To be eligible, a state-owned entity shall establish to AFD's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information AFD may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from their state (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup>World Bank, Inter-American Development Bank, African Development Bank, Asian Development Bank and European Bank for Reconstruction and Development.

enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to their state, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt.

### Section VI. AFD Policy - Prohibited Practices- environmental and social responsibility

#### 1. **Prohibited Practices**

The Contracting Authority and the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants shall respect the highest ethical principles during the procurement and performance of Contracts. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

For the purpose of this provision, AFD introduces the concept of Prohibited Practices, reffering to acts as defined in the "General Policy to Prevent and Combat Prohibited Practices" 23 available on the AFD website and in the document titled "Procurement Guidelines for AFD-Financed Contracts in Foreign Countries"24.

By signing the Statement of Integrity the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants declare that they have not engaged, nor will they engage, in any Prohibited Practices during the procurement and execution of the Contract.

A Person<sup>25</sup> or any of its subcontractors, Directors<sup>26</sup>, employees or agents (be it declared or not), may not be awarded an AFD-financed Contract if on the date of submission of its Application, Bid, Proposal or Quotation, or at any time between this date and that of the corresponding Contract award, it has engaged in a Prohibited Practice, directly or by means of an agent (be it declared or not), for the purpose of being awarded this Contract.

Moreover, AFD requires including in the procurement documents and AFD-financed contracts a provision requiring that applicants, bidders, suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants will permit AFD to investigate, innncluding the inspection of their accounts and records relating to the procurement process and performance of the AFD-financed contract, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

For the purpose of detecting and effectively combating Prohibited Practices, AFD has established a whistleblowing mechanism open to third parties: anyone can thereby directly report an allegation of a Prohibited Practice to AFD's Investigations Function, either:

- By e-mail, to the address investigationsGroupeAFD@tutanota.com, or
- By sending a letter to AFD's Compliance Department, 5 rue Roland Barthes, 75012 Paris.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> For more information, this Policy is available on the following link: https://www.afd.fr/en/combating-corruption

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> For more information, the Procurement Guidelines are available on the following link: https://www.afd.fr/en/bid-invitations-andprocurement
<sup>25</sup> Means any natural or legal person, as well as any association or group of several such persons.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> Means any natural person who is a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of a legal entity, or who is vested with powers of representation, decision-making, or control over a legal entity.

### 2. <u>Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Responsibility, and Security</u>

In order to promote sustainable development, AFD seeks to ensure that internationally recognized ESHS standards are complied with in the Contracts it finances. Consequently, the applicants, bidders, consultants and their subcontractors shall undertake, by signing the Statement of Integrity, to:

- a) Comply with the environmental standards recognized by the international community, including the international conventions for the protection of the environment and, in particular, take all reasonable steps to avoid or limit negative effects on vegetation, biodiversity, soils, groundwater and surface water, and on persons and property resulting from pollution, noise, vibration, traffic and other effects resulting from our activities, in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable in the country of performance of the Contract.
- b) Implement measures to mitigate environmental and social risks when they are indicated in the environmental and social management plan provided by the Contracting Authority, and ensure that the emissions, surface discharge and effluents produced by our activities respect the limits, specifications or requirements applicable to the Contract.
- c) Respect the rights of workers related to wages, working hours, rest periods and vacations, overtime, minimum age, regular payments, compensation and benefits, in accordance with the standards recognized by the international community, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organization (ILO), in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable in the country of performance of the Contract; indicate these elements in a document annexed to the employment contracts of our employees and made available to the Contracting Authority; and respect and facilitate the rights of workers to organize themselves and set up a complaints management mechanism for direct or indirect workers.
- d) Implement practices for non-discrimination and equal opportunities, and ensure the prohibition of child labor and forced labor.
- e) Keep a record for each member of the local staff recording the hours worked by each person, the type of work, the wages paid and the training undertaken, and ensure that these records are available at all times to be inspected by the Contracting Authority and the authorized representatives of the government, in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable to the protection of personal data in the country of performance of the Contract.

PART 2 – Supply Requirements

# **Section VII. Schedule of Requirements**

### Contents

1. List of Goods and Delivery Schedule	75
2. List of Related Services and Completion Schedule	76
3. Technical Specifications	77
4. Drawings	79
5. Inspections and Tests	95

### 1. List of Goods and Delivery Schedule

[The Purchaser shall fill in this table, with the exception of the column "Bidder's offered Delivery date" to be filled by the Bidder. The item list should be identical to the Price Schedule (Section IV)]

Line	Description of Goods	Quantity	Physical	Named	Delivery (as per Incoterms) Date			
Item N°			unit	place of Destination as specified in BDS	Earliest Delivery Date at named place of destination	Latest Delivery Date at named place of destination	Bidder's offered Delivery date at named place of destination [to be provided by the bidder]	
[insert item No]	[insert description of Goods]	[insert quantity of item to be supplied]	[insert physical unit for the quantity]	[insert named place of destination]	[insert the number of days following the date of signature of the Contract]	[insert the number of days following the date of signature of the Contract]	[insert the number of days following the date of signature of the Contract]	

### 2. List of Related Services and Completion Schedule

[This table shall be filled in by the Purchaser. The Required Completion Dates should be realistic, and consistent with the required Goods Delivery Dates]

Service	Description of Service	Quantity <sup>1</sup>	Physical Unit	Place where Services shall be performed	Final Completion Date(s) of Services
[insert Service No]	[insert description of Related Services]	[insert quantity of items to be supplied]	[insert physical unit for the items]	[insert name of the Place]	[insert required Completion Date(s)]
	[Training]				
	[Servicing and maintenance]				
	[List of spare parts]				
	[List of consumables]				

# 1. If applicable

#### **TERMS OF REFERENCE**

# THE SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION OF ICT INFRASTRUCTURE FOR THE ETHIOPIAN HORTICULTURE PRODUCER EXPORTERS ASSOCIATION (EHPEA)1 Background

### 1.1. Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA)

The horticulture sector in Ethiopia has shown tremendous growth in the last few years being among the top foreign currency generators to the national economy. It has also created many new employment opportunities for both skilled and non-skilled workers with youth and women being prime beneficiaries.

Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA) is a membership organization established in 2002. It is an organization meant to promote the interest of its members who are engaged in the production and export of cut flowers, fruit, vegetables, herbs, cuttings as well as vegetable seeds.

### 1.2. TradeMark Africa (TMA)

TradeMark Africa (TMA) is a leading African Aid-for-Trade organisation, founded in 2010 with the mission to grow intra-African trade and increase Africa's share in global trade, while helping make trade more pro-poor and environmentally sustainable. Our focus on reducing the cost and time of trading across borders through enhanced trade policy, better trade infrastructure, standards that work for businesses, greater use of digital innovations and a focus on creating trade access for vulnerable groups, has contributed to lower cargo transit times, improved border efficiency, and reduced trade barriers. TMA has expanded in recent years to cover 14 countries across East and the Horn of Africa, to Southern and West Africa. TMA operates on a not-for-profit basis and is funded by 12 institutional and philanthropic development partners. TMA works closely with regional and continental organisations, national Governments, the private sector, and civil society organisations to deliver results that drive shared prosperity and reduce poverty.

For more information, please visit www.trademarkafrica.com.

#### 1.3. Assignment Background

EHPEA with the technical and financial support from TMA are implementing the following solutions:

#### a) Knowledge Management System

This is an information management platform that will enable EHPEA to capture, organize, store, retrieve, and share knowledge and information within the organization. It is designed to facilitate knowledge creation, capture, organization, and dissemination to enhance decision-making, collaboration, innovation, and overall organizational performance.

By implementing a knowledge management system, EHPEA will foster collaboration, encourage innovation, support employee and stakeholders' development, and improve overall efficiency and competitiveness.

#### b) E-Learning System

This is a digital platform that will facilitate online learning and training. It will provide a convenient and flexible way for individuals to access educational materials, courses, and resources remotely, using computers or mobile devices.

These solutions are aimed enhancing organizational performance, foster continuous learning, and support compliance and competitiveness within the horticulture industry. To further support the operationalization of these systems, EHPEA seeks to procure the necessary ICT infrastructure to support their operationalization.

The aim of this procurement is therefoire to acquire the necessary ICT infrastructure that will support the efficient and effective functioning of the Knowledge Management System and E-Learning System at EHPEA. This includes servers, content development tools, and end-user devices that meet the technical and operational requirements of these systems.

### 1.4. Objective of Assignment

- a. Objective 1: ICT equipment supply, installation and branding.

  To supply and setup the equipment with the following considerations:
- b. Objective 2: Equipment handover

To carry out a handover procedure to EHPEA's technical team. The handover procedure will include the following:

- Compile detailed technical documentation for the equipment and setup.
- Carry out a mini training (knowledge transfer) to EHPEA's technical team.
- c. Objective 3: Warranty and maintenance
- To provide manufacturer's warranty, repair and maintenance services for all equipment for a period of not less than 1 year.
- To provide maintenance services based on the signed off implementation plan. This will be in line with standardized care park recommended by manufacturers.

#### 2. Recipient

- i. Ethiopian Horticulture Producer Exporters Association (EHPEA)
- ii. TradeMark Africa (TMA)

#### 3. Timeframe

The supply and installation exercise is expected to take a maximum of three (3) months.

### 4. Methodology

The hosting provider to indicate a suitable methodology for implementing the required services.

#### 5. Qualifications

The firm must possess the following qualifications:

- i. Must have previously executed similar projects and of similar scale or larger.
- ii. Be an authorized supplier of the category of equipment. A manufacturer authorization form (MAF) must be provided as proof.
- iii. Propose certified Engineers/Experts for the server equipment if bidding for the Servers lot
- iv. Demonstrate experience in previously executing projects of a similar scale at least 2 assignments for Each Lot bid for in the last 5 years. Copies of proof i.e. letter of award and assignment completion MUST be provided.

#### 6. Deliverables

The contracted firm will be expected to deliver:

- 1. Supply of all the equipment as per the annex attached to EHPEA premises in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia.
- 2. Professional setup and installation of the hardware as per international practice and standards.
- 3. Training to EHPEA technical staff on operation, support and maintenance of supplied hardware and software.
- 4. Maintenance services based on the signed off implementation plan. This will be in line with standardized care park recommended by manufacturers.

#### **Technical Specifications**

#### 7. Specifications

Bidders are allowed to bid per lot in which they qualify.

LOT	Category Description	
Lot 1	Personal Computers	Desktop workstations (computers)
		2. Laptop computers
		3. Storage Devices (External Hard Drives)

Lot 2	Servers		Rack mountable Servers	
			2. Rack mountable Uninterruptible Power Supp	oly
Lot 3	Photography	and	Video Cameras	
	Videography Equipmer	nt	2. Camera Tripods	
			3. Wireless Microphones	
			4. USB Microphones	
			5. Green Screen Backdrop	
			6. Acoustic foam	
			7. Video Fill Light	
			8. Light Reflector Diffuser Specification	

# **Lot 1: Desktops Workstation**

Features	Description	Quantity					
Processors	Intel Core i7-11th/12th Generation	3					
	2.8 GHz base clock, up to 4.0 GHz with Intel Turbo Boost						
	Technology						
	4 cores and 12 MB cache						
Memory	16 GB DDR4-3200 SDRAM						
Display	21 inch FHD 1920 x 1080						
Graphics	Intel Iris Xe Graphics						
Storage/drives	1TB HDD						
Networking	Ethernet ==> 10/100/1000 GbE NIC						
	Wireless LAN ==> 802.11a/b/g/n/ac						
	Bluetooth ==> Bluetooth 5						
Ports/slots	(1) USB 3.1 Gen 2 Type-C port						
	(3) USB 3.1 Gen 1 Type-A ports						
	(1) HDMI 1.4b						
	(1) RJ-45 (Ethernet) port						
Monitors	Non-Touch Display Panel; 21"						
Keyboard	Wired Keyboard						
Mouse	Wired Mouse						

# Desktop workstation picture illustration



# **Editing Desktop**

No	Features	Descrip	otion			Qty
		Intel	Core	i7-13th	Generation	1
		4.7	GHz	and	above	
1	Processors	4 cores	and 12 MB c	ache		
2	Memory	32 GB E	DR5-3200 a	nd above		
		27			inch	
3	Display	4K UHC	(2160p) 384	) Hz		
4	Graphics	16GB G	raphics Card			
5	Storage/Drives	2TB HD	D			
		Etherne	t ==> 10/100	)/1000 GbE NI	С	
6	Networking	Wireles	s LAN ==> 80	02.11a/b/g/n/a	ас	
7	Ports/slots	Basic no	ecessary por			
8	Accessories	Power 0	Cables and S	peakers		

# Editing Desktop picture illustration



# **Laptops Specifications**

Item	Description	Specifications	Quantity
Laptop Computers	Processor	Intel Core i7-13th Generation  2.8 GHz base clock, up to 5.0 GHz with Intel Turbo Boost Technology  8 cores and 20 MB cache	12
	Webcam	Full 720p HD Webcam with e-privacy shutter	
	Total Storage Capacity	1TB PCIe NVMe Solid State Drive	-
	Memory	16 GB DDR4-3200 and above	
	Ports	(1) USB 3.1 Gen 2 Type-C port (3) USB 3.1 Gen 1 Type-A ports (1) HDMI (1) RJ-45 (Ethernet) port (1) Headphone/microphone combo jack	
		(1) MicroSD Card reader (supports SD, SDHC, and SDXC)	-
	Keyboard	QWERTY	
	Mouse	Wireless	
	Networking	Ethernet ==> 10/100/1000 GbE NIC	

		Wireless LAN ==> 802.11a/b/g/n/ac	
		Bluetooth ==> Bluetooth 5	
	Projection	1 HDMI port. Additionally, the supplier must	
		provide either a VGA port or an adapter for	
		projection through VGA ports.	
	Graphics	Intel Iris	
	Power	3-Cell battery 6 hours	
	Autonomy	≥ 8 hours operation independent from an	
		external power source	
	Accessories	AC power adapter and Quality carrying bag	
	Screen	14" touchscreen Display FHD 1920 x 1080	
Additional	Warranty Minimum 12 mo	onths (Repair or replace)	
requirements	Required Document Tec	hnical data sheet issued by the manufacture	er and not
	printed		
	Compliance with Europea	an Standards Computers to be provided must h	ave the CE
	marking directly affixed o	n them and on their technical data sheet.	
	Software Preinstalled Windows Pro 11 + MS Office Pro 2019 (all activated with		
	genuine keys. Trial or eval	luation keys are prohibited)	

# Laptop Picture illustration



**Editing Laptop** 

No	Features	Description	Quantity	
		Intel Core i7-13th Generation 2.8 GHz base clock, up to 5.0 GHz with Intel Turbo Boost Technology	1	
1	Processors	12 cores and 30 MB cache		
2	Memory	32 GB DDR5-3200 and above		
3	Display	FHD 1920 x 1080 and above		
4	Graphics	16 GB Dedicated Graphics Card		
5	Camera	720p HD camera		
6	Storage/Drives	1TB PCIe NVMe Solid State Drive Additional 1TB HDD		
		Ethernet ==> 10/100/1000 GbE NIC		
		Wireless LAN ==> 802.11a/b/g/n/ac		
7	Networking	Bluetooth ==> Bluetooth 5		
		(1) USB 3.1 Gen 2 Type-C port		
		(3) USB 3.1 Gen 1 Type-A ports		
		(1) HDMI		
		(1) RJ-45 (Ethernet) port		
		(1) Headphone/microphone combo jack		
8	Ports/slots	(1) MicroSD Card reader (supports SD, SDHC, and SDXC)		
9	Battery	3-Cell battery 6 hours		
10	Accessories	AC power adapter and Quality carrying bag		

# Editing laptop Picture illustration



Lot 2: Server (HPE ProLiant DL380 Gen11 Server)

No	Features	Description	Qty
		Intel® Processor family 5th Gen Intel® Xeon® Scalable	1
		Processors	
		Processor core available 16 to 60 core	
		Processor speed 3.1 GHz or above	
1	Processor	Processor cache 22.5 MB to 112.5 MB L3	
		Memory type HPE DDR5 Smart Memory	
		Installed memory 64 GB	
2	Server Memory	Memory slots 32	
3	Server Cooling	High Performance Fan Kit	
4	Server Expansions	Up to 8 PCle Gen5, and 2 OCP 3.0	
5	Server Form Factor	Form factor 2U Rack	
		Network controller 1 Gb, 10 Gb, 10/25 Gb, 100 Gb	
6	Server Controllers	Storage controller HPE SR932i-p and	
7	Server Drives	Drive supported 8 SATA	
		Infrastructure managementHPE iLO Standard with	
		intelligent provisioning (embedded), HPE OneView	
		Standard (requires download) (standard) HPE iLO	
	Management	Advanced, HPE OneView Advanced (optional, requires	
8	Software	licenses), and HPE GreenLake COM	
9	Operating System	Windows Server 2022 with 10 years license	
		HPE TPM 2.0 standard on motherboard. Optional	
10	Security	locking Bezel Kit, Intrusion Detection Kit.	
		Power supply type 800W, 1000W, or 1600W Dual hot-	
		plug redundant 1+1 HPE Flexible Slot Power Supplies,	
11	Server Power	depending on model	
		Warranty3/3/3: Server Warranty includes three years of	
		parts, three years of labor, and three years of onsite	
12	Warranty	support coverage	

Server picture illustration



### **UPS**

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Capacity	1500VA	1
2	Interface	LCD Interface	
3	Mounting	Rack Mountable	
4	Outlets	6 outlets or more	
5	<b>Battery Cell Composition</b>	Sealed Lead Acid	
6	Power Regulation	Automatic Voltage Regulation (AVR) adjusts high and low voltages to a safe level, helping preserve the life of the battery	
7	Power Input	240V	
	. orror mpar		
8	Warranty	1 year	

### **UPS Picture illustration**



### Lot 3: Video Camera

Video	Video Camera Specification				
#	Item	Description	Specification	Quantity	
1	Lens	Lens Mount	Fixed	2	
		Zoom Ratio	12x (optical), servo		
		Focal Length	f = 9.3 - 111.6 mmequivalent to f =		
			29.0 - 348.0 mm on 35 mm lens		
			(16:9) equivalent to f = 35.5 - 426.0		
			mm on 35 mm lens (4:3)		
		Iris	F2.8 - F11 auto/manual selectable		
		Focus	AF/MF selectable, 10 mm to ∞		
			(Wide), 1000 mm to ∞ (Tele)		

		Image Stabilizer	ON/OFF selectable, shift lens	
		Filter Diameter	M62 mm	
	1	1	,	
2	Camera Section	Imaging Device (Type)	1.0-type (13.2 mm x 8.8 mm) back- illuminated Exmor R CMOS sensor	
		Effective Picture Elements	Approx. 14.2 M pixels (16:9)/Approx. 10.6 M pixels (4:3)	
		Built-in Optical Filters	OFF: Clear, 1: 1/4ND, 2: 1/16ND, 3: 1/64ND	
		Minimum Illumination	[50i] 1.7 lux (LOW LUX mode)	
		Shutter Speed	[50i]: 1/6 -1/10,000	
		Slow & Quick Motion Function	[50i]: 1080p: Frame rate selectable 1.2.3.6.12.25,50 fps	
		White Balance	Preset (Indoor: 3200K, Outdoor: 5600K±7 steps, Color temparature set range: 2300-15000K), Onepush A, B, Auto selectable	
		Gain	-3, 0, 3, 6, 9, 12,15, 18, 21, 24, 27, 30, 33 dB, AGC	
		Gamma Curve	Selectable	
3	Input/Output	Audio Input	XLR-type 3-pin (female) (x2), line/mic/mic +48 V selectable	
		Video Output	BNC (×1), Composite 1.0Vp-p, 75 Ω	
		Audio Output	RCA pin	
		USB	Multi/Micro USB jack (x1)	
		Headphone Output	Stereo mini jack (x1)	
		Speaker Output	Monaural	
		DC Input	DC jack	
		Remote	Stereo mini mini jack (x1)	
		HDMI Output	Type A (x1)	
		•	1	
4	Monitoring	Viewfinder	0.6cm(0.24 type) Approx. 1.56 M dots.	
		LCD	8.8 cm (3.5 type) Approx. 1.56 M dots.	

5	Microphone	Built-in Microphone	Omni-directional stereo electret condenser microphone.	
	•			
6	Media	Туре	Memory Stick Pro Duo(TM) and SD/SDHC/SDXC compatible (x1) SD/SDHC/SDXC (x1)	
	•	•		
7	Accessories	Supplied Accessories	Charger(BC-L1) (1), Lens hood (1), Lens cap (1), Large eyecup (1), Shoe cap (1), USB cable (1), Rechargeable battery pack (NP- F570) (1), AC Adaptor (AC-L100 C) (1), Power cord (mains lead) (1), Wireless Remote Commander (RMT-845) (1), Lithium battery (CR2025 for the Wireless Remote Commander) (1)	

# Video camera picture illustration



# **Camera Tripod**

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Maximum Height	183cm or above	2
2	Panning Range	360	
3	Head Type	Fluid Head	
4	Spreader	Fixed Middle Spreader	
5	Load Capacity	10kg or above	
6	Material	Aluminium Alloy	

7	Handle	Adjustable handle can be installed on the right or left of head for easy angle adjustment	
8	Number of leg sections	3 Legs	
9	Accessories	Carying Bag	

# **Tripod picture representation**



# **Wireless Microphone**

Micropl	none Specification		
No	Features	Description	Quantity
1	Technology	Wireless UHF	2
2	Display	OLED (Battery Status, Channel, Frequency, Menu Navigation, Mute, Peak, RF Level)	
3	Microphone Type	Lavalier	
4	Recording	Built in recording and Camera	
5	Channel	Dual channel wireless microphone system for recording two sound sources simultaneously	
6	Analog Inputs	3.5mm TRS (lavalier microphone input)	
7	Analog Outputs	3.5mm TRS	
8	Transmission Range	200m (line of sight)	
9	Mounting	On camera, handheld and person	
10	Operating Time	6 hours and above	
11	Power Source	Battery	

# Wireless microphone picture illustration



# **USB Microphone**

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Connectivity	USB	4
2	Microphone Type	Condenser Microphone	
3	Polar Patterns	Cardioid, Bidirectional, Omnidirectional, Stereo	
4	Frequency Response	Frequency Response: 20 Hz - 20 kHz	
5	Compatability	Windows and Mac Os	
6	Outputs	3.5mm earphone jack	
7	Mounting	On table with builtin arm	
8	Accessories	Boom Arm, PoP filter,	

# **USB Microphone picture illustration**



### **Green Screen Backdrop Specifications**

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Maximum Height	200 cm	2

2	Maximum Width	150 cm	
3	Color	Green	
4	Build Material	100% cotton to absorb light and help eliminate reflection	
5	Stand	Yes	
6	Accessories	Carying Bag	

### **Green screen picture illustration**



### **Acoustic foam**

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Producti Dimension	12 x 12 x 1 inches	10 Pack
2	Color	Black	
3	Build Material	Foam	

# Acoustic foam picture illustration



# Video Fill Light

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Light Source	LED light beads	4
2	Color Modes	RGB	
3	Connectivity	Bluetooth	1
4	Opetating Mode	Battery and AC	1
5	Color Temprature	Adjustable 3200K-5600K 55W	1
6	Filter	Soft Filter/white diffuser	
7	Mounting	U mount in stand	
8	Accessories	AC adapter, charger, stand and carrying bag	7

Video fill light picture illustration



**Light Reflector Diffuser Specification** 

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Color	Multicolor	1 pack
2	Material	Silver,Steel	
3	<b>Product Dimension</b>	1.6"D x 16.2"W x 15.4"H	
4	Opetating Mode	Battery and AC	
5	Accessories	Carrying bag	

Light Reflector diffuser picture illustration



# **Storage Devices (Preferred Brands Transcend and Seagate)**

No	Features	Description	Qty
1	Capacity	2TB / 4TB	12
2	Connection Interface	USB 3.1 Gen 1 (USB 5Gbps) micro USB to USB Type A	
3	Operating Temperature	5°C (41°F) ~ 55°C (131°F)	
4	Operating Voltage	5V	
		Microsoft Windows 7 or later	
5	Operating System	macOS 10.10 or later	

### **Storage Device picture illustration**



# 4. Drawings

These Bidding Documents includes [insert "the following" or "no"] drawings.

[If documents shall be included, insert the following List of Drawings]

List of Drawings			
Drawing Nr.	Drawing Name	Purpose	

_			Task
5.	Inspections	and	rests

5. Inspections and Tests			
The following inspections and tests shall be performed: [insert list of inspections and tests]			

### **PART 3 - Contract**

### **Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract**

### **Table of Clauses**

1.	Definitions	.98
2.	Contract Documents	.99
3.	Fraud and Corruption	.99
4.	Interpretation	.99
5.	Language1	.00
6.	Joint Venture, Consortium or Association	.00
7.	Eligibility1	.01
8.	Notices	.01
9.	Governing Law1	.01
10.	Settlement of Disputes	.01
11.	Inspections and Audit by the AFD	.02
12.	Scope of Supply	.02
13.	Delivery and Documents	.02
14.	Supplier's Responsibilities	.02
15.	Contract Price	.02
16.	Terms of Payment	.02
17.	Taxes and Duties1	.03
18.	Performance Security1	.03
19.	Copyright1	.04
20.	Confidential Information1	.04

21. Subcontracting	105
22. Specifications and Standards	105
23. Packing and Documents	106
24. Insurance	106
25. Transportation	106
26. Inspections and Tests	107
27. Liquidated Damages	108
28. Warranty	108
29. Patent Indemnity	109
30. Limitation of Liability	110
31. Change in Laws and Regulations	111
32. Force Majeure	111
33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments	111
34. Extensions of Time	112
35. Termination	113
36. Assignment	114
37. Export Restriction	114

#### Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract

#### 1. Definitions

- 1.1 The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:
  - (a) "AFD" means the Agence Française de Développement;
  - (b) "Contract" means the Contract Agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein;
  - (c) "Contract Documents" means the documents listed in the Contract Agreement, including any amendments thereto;
  - (d) "Contract Price" means the price payable to the Supplier as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions therefrom, as may be made pursuant to the Contract;
  - (e) "Day" means calendar day;
  - (f) "Completion" means the fulfillment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract;
  - (g) "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract;
  - (h) "Goods" means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract;
  - (i) "Purchaser's Country" is the country specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC);
  - (j) "Purchaser" means the entity purchasing the Goods and Related Services, as specified in the **SCC**;
  - (k) "Related Services" means the services incidental to the supply of the goods, such as insurance, installation, training and initial maintenance and other such obligations of the Supplier under the Contract;

- (I) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract;
- (m) "Subcontractor" means any natural person, private or state entity, or a combination of the above, to whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier;
- (n) "Supplier" means the natural person, private or state entity, or a combination of the above, whose bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Purchaser and is named as such in the Contract Agreement;
- (o) "The Project Site," where applicable, means the place named in the **SCC**.

### 2. Contract Documents

- 2.1 Subject to the order of precedence set forth in the Contract Agreement, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory. The Contract Agreement shall be read as a whole.
- 3. Fraud and 3.1 The AFD requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Appendix 1 to the SCC.
- 4. Interpretation
- 4.2 If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa.

### 4.3 Incoterms

- (a) Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of parties thereunder shall be as prescribed by Incoterms;
- (b) The terms CIP and other similar terms, when used, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms specified in the SCC and published by the International Chamber of Commerce in Paris, France.

### 4.4 Entire Agreement

The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.

### 4.5 Amendment

No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each party thereto.

### 4.6 Nonwaiver

- (a) Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 4.5(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract;
- (b) Any waiver of a party's rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.

### 4.7 Severability

If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract.

### 5. Language

- 5.1 The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Supplier and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified in the SCC. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.
- 5.2 The Supplier shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Supplier.
- 6. Joint Venture,
  Consortium or
  Association

6.1

If the Supplier is a joint venture, consortium, or association, all of the parties shall be jointly and severally liable to the Purchaser for the fulfillment of the provisions of the Contract and shall designate one party to act as a leader with authority to bind the joint venture, consortium, or

association. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture, consortium, or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Purchaser.

### 7. Eligibility

7.1 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the AFD shall have their origin in any eligible source as specified in the SCC. For the purpose of this Clause, origin means the country where the goods have been grown, mined, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

#### 1. Notices

- 8.1 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the **SCC.** The term "in writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.
- 8.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.

### 9. Governing Law

9.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser's Country, unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**.

### 10. Settlement Disputes

- of 10.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.
  - 10.2 If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under the Contract. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure specified in the SCC.
  - 10.3 Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein,

- (a) The parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and
- (b) The Purchaser shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier.

# 11. Inspections and Audit by the AFD

- and 11.1 The Supplier shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors to keep accurate and systematic accounts and records, in respect of the Goods in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
  - 11.2 The Supplier shall permit, and shall cause its Subcontractors and consultants to permit, the AFD and/or persons appointed by the AFD to inspect the Supplier's offices and all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the bid, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the AFD if requested by the AFD.
- 12. Scope of Supply
- 12.1 The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the Schedule of Requirements.
- 13. Delivery and 13.1 Documents
- 13.1 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 33.1, the Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the SCC.
- 14. Supplier's Responsibilities
- 14.1 The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included in the Scope of Supply in accordance with GCC Clause 12, and the Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 13.
- 15. Contract Price
- 15.1 Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods supplied and the Related Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the **SCC**.
- 16. Terms of Payment
- 16.1 The Contract Price, including any Advance Payments, if applicable, shall be paid as specified in the **SCC**.
- 16.2 The Supplier's request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 13 and upon fulfillment of all other obligations stipulated in the Contract.

- 16.3 Payments shall be made promptly by the Purchaser, but in no case later than sixty (60) days after submission of an invoice or request for payment by the Supplier, and after the Purchaser has accepted it.
- 16.4 The currencies in which payments shall be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be those in which the bid price is expressed.
- 16.5 In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its due date or within the period set forth in the SCC, the Purchaser shall pay to the Supplier interest on the amount of such delayed payment at the rate shown in the SCC, for the period of delay until payment has been made in full, whether before or after judgment or arbitrage award.

### 17. Taxes and Duties

- 17.1 For goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, stamp duties, license fees, and other such levies imposed outside the Purchaser's Country.
- 17.2 For goods manufactured within the Purchaser's country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Purchaser.
- 17.3 If any tax exemptions, reductions, allowances or privileges may be available to the Supplier in the Purchaser's Country as specified in the SCC, the Purchaser shall use its best efforts to enable the Supplier to benefit from any such tax savings to the maximum allowable extent.

# 18. Performance Security

- 18.1 The Supplier shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the **SCC**.
- 18.2 The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- 18.3 The Performance Security shall be denominated in the currency(ies) of the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser; and shall be in one of the format stipulated by the Purchaser in the **SCC**, or in another format acceptable to the Purchaser.
- 18.4 The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days

following the date of Completion of the Supplier's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in the **SCC**.

### 19. Copyright

19.1 The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier herein shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party.

### 20. Confidential Information

- 20.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under GCC Clause 20.
- 20.2 The Purchaser shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the performance of the Contract.
- 20.3 The obligation of a party under GCC Sub-Clauses 20.1 and 20.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that:
  - (a) The Purchaser or Supplier need to share with the AFD or other institutions participating in the financing of the Contract;
  - (b) Now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;
  - (c) Can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; or

- (d) Otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality.
- 20.4 The above provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Supply or any part thereof.
- 20.5 The provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.

### 21. Subcontracting

- 21.1 The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in the bid. Such notification, in the original bid or later shall not relieve the Supplier from any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liability under the Contract.
- 21.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7.

### 22. Specifications and Standards

### **Specifications and** 22.1 Technical Specifications and Drawings

- (a) The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards mentioned in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods' country of origin;
- (b) The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser;
- (c) Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Schedule of Requirements. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 33.

#### 23. **Packing Documents**

- and 23.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their named place of destination, as indicated in the Contract. During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the goods' named place of destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.
  - 23.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the SCC, and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser.

#### 24. Insurance

24.1 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the Goods supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured—in a freely convertible currency from an eligible country—against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable Incoterms or in the manner specified in the **SCC**.

#### 25. **Transportation**

- 25.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, responsibility for arranging transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the specified Incoterms.
- The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following 25.2 services, including additional services, if any, specified in SCC:
- (a) Performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start-up of the supplied Goods;
- (b) Furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods;
- (c) Furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods;
- Performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the (d) supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and

- (e) Training of the Purchaser's personnel, at the Supplier's plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods.
- 25.3 Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.
- 26. Inspections and 26.1 The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related Services as are specified in the SCC.
  - 26.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, and/or at the Goods' named place of destination, or in another place in the Purchaser's Country as specified in the SCC. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 26.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser.
  - 26.3 The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 26.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.
  - 26.4 Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection.
  - 26.5 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications, codes and standards under the Contract, provided that the Supplier's reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier's performance of its other obligations under the Contract, due

- allowance will be made in respect of the Delivery Dates and Completion Dates and the other obligations so affected.
- 26.6 The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.
- 26.7 The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.4.
- 26.8 The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under the Contract.

## 27. Liquidated Damages

27.1 Except as provided under GCC Clause 32, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods by the Date(s) of delivery or perform the Related Services within the period specified in the Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to all its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the SCC of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in those SCC. Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 35.

### 28. Warranty

- 28.1 The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in the Contract.
- 28.2 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 22.1(b), the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, and workmanship, under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the country of named place of destination.

- 28.3 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the named place of destination indicated in the **SCC**, or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from the port or place of loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier.
- 28.4 The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any such defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects.
- 28.5 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the **SCC**, expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser.
- 28.6 If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in the **SCC**, the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier's risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under the Contract.

### 29. Patent Indemnity

- 29.1 The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser's compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 29.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of:
  - (a) The installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the country where the Site is located; and
  - (b) The sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods.

Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment,

- plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to the Contract.
- 29.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 29.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser's name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.
- 29.3 If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf.
- 29.4 The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier's request, afford all available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
- 29.5 The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser.

### 30. Limitation Liability

of 30.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,

- (a) The Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser; and
- (b) The aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply

to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the purchaser with respect to patent infringement

### 31. Change in Laws 31.1 and Regulations

Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of 28 days prior to date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in the place of the Purchaser's country where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Delivery Date and/or the Contract Price, then such Delivery Date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 15.

### 32. Force Majeure

- 32.1 The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its Performance Security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.
- 32.2 For purposes of this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an event or situation beyond the control of the Supplier that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of the Supplier. Such events may include, but not be limited to, acts of the Purchaser in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.
- 32.3 If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

# 33. Change Orders 33.1 and Contract Amendments

3.1 The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through notice in accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following:

- (a) Drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser;
- (b) The method of shipment or packing;
- (c) The place of delivery; and
- (d) The Related Services to be provided by the Supplier.
- 33.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier's performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Delivery/Completion Schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the Supplier's receipt of the Purchaser's change order.
- 33.3 Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.
- 33.4 Subject to the above, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.
- 34. Extensions of Time 34.1 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 13, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier's notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract.
  - 34.2 Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 32, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 27, unless

an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 34.1.

### 35. Termination

#### 35.1 Termination for Default

- (a) The Purchaser, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part:
  - (i) If the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Clause 34;
  - (ii) If the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract; or
  - (iii) If the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser has engaged in fraud and corruption, as defined in GCC Clause3, in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- (b) In the event the Purchaser terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 35.1(a), the Purchaser may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated.

### 35.2 Termination for Insolvency

(a) The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser.

### 35.3 Termination for Convenience

(a) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that

termination is for the Purchaser's convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective;

- (b) The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier's receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect:
  - (i) To have any portion completed and delivered at the Contract terms and prices; and/or
  - (ii) To cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.

- 36. Assignment
- 36.1 Neither the Purchaser nor the Supplier shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with prior written consent of the other party.
- 37. Export Restriction
- 37.1 Notwithstanding any obligation under the Contract to complete all export formalities, any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, which arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, and which substantially impede the Supplier from meeting its obligations under the Contract, shall release the Supplier from the obligation to provide deliveries or services, always provided, however, that the Supplier can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the AFD that it has completed all formalities in a timely manner, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract. Termination of the Contract on this basis shall be for the Purchaser's convenience pursuant to Sub-Clause 35.3.

### **Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract**

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and / or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

[The Purchaser shall select insert the appropriate wording using the samples below or other acceptable wording, and delete the text in italics]

GCC 1.1(i)	The Purchaser's country is: [insert name of the Purchaser's Country]	
GCC 1.1(j)	The Purchaser is: [Insert complete legal name of the Purchaser]	
GCC 1.1 (o)	The Project Site(s)/Named Place of Destination(s) is/are: [Insert name(s) and detailed information on the location(s) of the site(s)]	
GCC 4.2	The meaning of the trade terms shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.	
	The version edition of Incoterms shall be Incoterms 2010.	
	However, the definition of the place and date associated with "delivery" is modified as follows:	
	(a) Under "CIP" Incoterms defines "delivery" as the place and date where risk transfers from the seller to the buyer.	
	(b) In these Bidding Documents, when using "CIP" and not referring to the transfer of risk, the term "delivery" shall be interpreted as the date and place where the Goods and Related Services arrive at the named place of destination, and this date shall be reflected in the Delivery and Completion Schedule.	
GCC 5.1	The governing and communication language shall be English	
GCC 7.1	Goods and services from countries under embargo from France, the European Union or the United Nations are not eligible.	

GCC 8.1	For <u>notices</u> , the Purchaser's address shall be:
	Attention: [ insert full name of person, if applicable]
	Street Address: [insert street address and number]
	City: [insert name of city or town]
	ZIP Code: [insert postal ZIP code, if applicable]
	Country: [insert name of country]
	Telephone: [include telephone number, including country and city codes]
	Electronic mail address: [insert e-mail address, if applicable]
GCC 9.1	The governing law shall be the law of: [usually, the Purchaser's country]
GCC 10.2	The rules of procedure for arbitration proceedings pursuant to GCC Clause 10.2 shall be as follows:
	[The bidding documents should contain one clause to be retained in the event of a Contract with a foreign Supplier and one clause to be retained in the event of a Contract with a Supplier who is a national of the Purchaser's country. At the time of finalizing the Contract, the respective applicable clause should be retained in the Contract. The following explanatory note should therefore be inserted as a header to GCC 10.2 in the bidding document.
	"Clause 10.2 (a) shall be retained in the case of a Contract with a foreign Supplier and clause 10.2 (b) shall be retained in the case of a Contract with a national of the Purchaser's country."]
	(a) Contract with foreign Supplier:
	[For contracts entered into with foreign suppliers, International commercial arbitration may have practical advantages over other dispute settlement methods. The AFD should not be named as arbitrator, nor should it be asked to name an arbitrator. Among the rules to govern the arbitration proceedings, the Purchaser may wish to consider the United Nations Commission on International Trade Law (UNCITRAL) Arbitration Rules of 1976, the Rules of Conciliation and Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce (ICC).]
	If the Purchaser chooses the UNCITRAL Arbitration Rules, the following sample clause should be inserted:
	GCC 10.2—Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Contract, or breach, termination or invalidity thereof, shall be settled

by arbitration in accordance with the UNCITRAL Arbitration Rules as at present in force.

If the Purchaser chooses the Rules of ICC, the following sample clause should be inserted:

GCC 10.2—All disputes arising in connection with the present Contract shall be finally settled under the Rules of Conciliation and Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce by one or more arbitrators appointed in accordance with said Rules.

(b) Contracts with Supplier national of the Purchaser's country:

In the case of a dispute between the Purchaser and a Supplier who is a national of the Purchaser's country, the dispute shall be referred to adjudication or arbitration in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser's country.

### GCC 13.1 For Goods supplied from abroad:

Upon shipment, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser and the Insurance Company by cable or by electronic way previously agreed between parties the full details of the shipment, including Contract number, description of Goods, quantity, the mode of transport, the bill of lading number and date, place of loading, date of shipment, place of discharge, etc. The Supplier shall mail the following documents to the Purchaser, with a copy to the Insurance Company:

- (i) Copies of the Supplier's invoice showing Goods' description, quantity, unit price, and total amount;
- (ii) Original and \_\_\_\_\_ copies of the negotiable, clean, on-board bill of lading marked "freight prepaid" and \_\_\_\_\_ copies of nonnegotiable bill of lading;
- (iii) Copies of the packing list identifying contents of each package;
- (iv) Insurance certificate;
- (v) Manufacturer's or Supplier's warranty certificate;
- (vi) Inspection certificate, issued by the nominated inspection agency, and the Supplier's factory inspection report; and
- (vii) Certificate of origin.

The above documents shall be received by the Purchaser at least one week before arrival of the Goods at the place of arrival and, if not received, the Supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses.

	For Goods from within the Purchaser's country:	
	Upon delivery of the Goods to the transporter, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser and mail the following documents to the Purchaser:	
	(i) copies of the Supplier's invoice showing Goods' description, quantity, unit price, and total amount;	
	(ii) delivery note, railway receipt, or truck receipt;	
	(iii) Manufacturer's or Supplier's warranty certificate;	
	(iv) inspection certificate issued by the nominated inspection agency, and the Supplier's factory inspection report; and	
	(v) certificate of origin.	
	The above documents shall be received by the Purchaser before arrival of the Goods and, if not received, the Supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses.	
GCC 15.1	The prices charged for the Goods supplied and the related Services performed [insert "shall" or "shall not," as appropriate] be adjustable.	
	If prices are adjustable, the following method shall be used to calculate the price adjustment [see attachment to these SCC for a sample Price Adjustment Formula]	
GCC 16.1	GCC 16.1—The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Supplier	
	under this Contract shall be as follows:	
	Payment for Goods supplied from abroad:	
	Payment of foreign currency portion shall be made in (	
	) [currency of the Contract Price] in the following manner:	
	(i) Advance Payment: Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid within thirty (30) days of signing of the Contract, and upon submission of claim and a bank guarantee for equivalent amount valid until the Goods are delivered and in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Purchaser;	
	(ii) On Shipment: Eighty (80) percent of the Contract Price of the Goods shipped shall be paid [through irrevocable confirmed letter of credit opened in favor of the Supplier in a bank in its country], upon submission of documents specified in GCC Clause 13;	
	(iii) On Acceptance: Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price of Goods received shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Goods upon	

	submission of claim supported by the acceptance certificate issued by the Purchaser.		
	Payment of local currency portion shall be made in		
	Payment for Goods and Services supplied from within the Purchaser's country:		
	Payment for Goods and Services supplied from within the Purchaser's country shall be made in [currency], as follows:		
	(i) Advance Payment: Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid within thirty (30) days of signing of the Contract against a simple receipt and a bank guarantee for the equivalent amount and in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Purchaser;		
	(ii) On Delivery: Eighty (80) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid on receipt of the Goods and upon submission of the documents specified in GCC Clause 13;		
	(iii) On Acceptance: The remaining ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid to the Supplier within thirty (30) days after the date of the acceptance certificate for the respective delivery issued by the Purchaser.		
GCC 16.1	Payment to the Supplier of the amounts due in each currency shall be made into the following bank accounts:		
	[insert bank account details at the time of contract signing]		
GCC 16.5	The payment-delay period after which the Purchaser shall pay interest to the supplier shall be [insert number] days.		
	The interest rate for payments in foreign currency that shall be applied is [inser LIBOR + 200 bp].		
	The interest rate for payments in local currency that shall be applied is [insert rate].		
GCC 17.3	The following taxes, duties and fees exemptions apply to the Contract: [Insert list of tax exemptions for goods supplied from abroad, for goods supplied within the Purchaser's country, and for related services]		
GCC 18.1	The amount of the Performance Security shall be: [insert amount]		
	[The amount of the Performance Security is usually expressed as a percentage of the Contract Price. The percentage varies according to the Purchaser's perceived		

	risk and impact of non-performance by the Supplier. A 10% percentage is used under normal circumstances]	
GCC 18.3	The Performance Security shall be in the form of: [insert "a Bank Guarantee" or" a Performance Bond"]  The Performance security shall be denominated in [insert "the currencies of payment of the Contract, in accordance with their portions of the Contract Price"]	
GCC 18.4	Discharge of the Performance Security shall take place: [insert date if different from the one indicated in sub clause GCC 18.4; otherwise, delete clause]	
GCC 23.2	The packing, marking and documentation within and outside the packages shall be: [insert in detail the type of packing required, the markings in the packing and all documentation required]	
GCC 24.1	The insurance coverage shall be as specified in the Incoterms.	
	If not in accordance with Incoterms, insurance shall be as follows:	
	[Insert specific insurance provisions agreed upon, including coverage, currency and amount]	
GCC 25.1	Responsibility for transportation of the Goods shall be as specified in the Incoterms.	
	If not in accordance with Incoterms, responsibility for transportations shall be as follows: [insert "The Supplier is required under the Contract to transport the Goods to a specified named place of destination within the Purchaser's country, defined as the Project Site; transport to such named place of destination in the Purchaser's country, including insurance and storage, as shall be specified in the Contract, shall be arranged by the Supplier, and related costs shall be included in the Contract Price"; or any other agreed upon trade terms (specify the respective responsibilities of the Purchaser and the Supplier)]	
GCC 25.2	Incidental services to be provided are:	
	[Selected services covered under GCC Clause 25.2 and/or other should be specified with the desired features. The price quoted in the bid price or agreed with the selected Supplier shall be included in the Contract Price.]	
GCC 26.1	The inspections and tests shall be: [insert nature, frequency, procedures for carrying out the inspections and tests, or state "as specified in Section VII - Schedule of Requirements"]	
GCC 26.2	The Inspections and tests shall be conducted at: [insert name(s) of location(s)]	
GCC 27.1	The liquidated damage shall be: [insert number, usually 0.5%] % per week	

GCC 27.1	The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be: [insert number not exceeding 10%] %
GCC 28.3	The period of validity of the Warranty shall be: [insert number] days
	For purposes of the Warranty, the named place(s) of destination(s) shall be:
	[insert name(s) of location(s)]
	Sample provision
	GCC 28.3—In partial modification of the provisions, the warranty period shall be hours of operation or months from date of acceptance of the Goods or () months from the date of shipment, whichever occurs earlier. The Supplier shall, in addition, comply with the performance and/or consumption guarantees specified under the Contract. If, for reasons attributable to the Supplier, these guarantees are not attained in whole or in part, the Supplier shall, at its discretion, either:
	(a) Make such changes, modifications, and/or additions to the Goods or any part thereof as may be necessary in order to attain the contractual guarantees specified in the Contract at its own cost and expense and to carry out further performance tests in accordance with SCC 4;
	OR
	(b) Pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser with respect to the failure to meet the contractual guarantees. The rate of these liquidated damages shall be ().
GCC 28.5 and GCC 28.6	The period for repair or replacement shall be: [insert number(s)] days.

### Appendix 1 to Special Conditions of Contract: Prohibited Practices Policy and environmental and social responsibility

### 1. Prohibited Practices

The Contracting Authority and the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants shall respect the highest ethical principles during the procurement and performance of Contracts. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

For the purpose of this provision, AFD introduces the concept of Prohibited Practices, reffering to acts as defined in the "General Policy to Prevent and Combat Prohibited Practices" available on the AFD website and in the document titled "Procurement Guidelines for AFD-Financed Contracts in Foreign Countries" 28.

By signing the Statement of Integrity the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants declare that they have not engaged, nor will they engage, in any Prohibited Practices during the procurement and execution of the Contract.

A Person<sup>29</sup> or any of its subcontractors, Directors<sup>30</sup>, employees or agents (be it declared or not), may not be awarded an AFD-financed Contract if on the date of submission of its Application, Bid, Proposal or Quotation, or at any time between this date and that of the corresponding Contract award, it has engaged in a Prohibited Practice, directly or by means of an agent (be it declared or not), for the purpose of being awarded this Contract.

Moreover, AFD requires including in the procurement documents and AFD-financed contracts a provision requiring that applicants, bidders, suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants will permit AFD to investigate, innucluding the inspection of their accounts and records relating to the procurement process and performance of the AFD-financed contract, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

For the purpose of detecting and effectively combating Prohibited Practices, AFD has established a whistleblowing mechanism open to third parties: anyone can thereby directly report an allegation of a Prohibited Practice to AFD's Investigations Function, either:

- By e-mail, to the address investigationsGroupeAFD@tutanota.com, or
- By sending a letter to AFD's Compliance Department, 5 rue Roland Barthes, 75012 Paris.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> For more information, this Policy is available on the following link: https://www.afd.fr/en/combating-corruption

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> For more information, the Procurement Guidelines are available on the following link: https://www.afd.fr/en/bid-invitations-and-procurement

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> Means any natural or legal person, as well as any association or group of several such persons.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> Means any natural person who is a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of a legal entity, or who is vested with powers of representation, decision-making, or control over a legal entity.

### 2. Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Responsibility, and Security

In order to promote sustainable development, AFD seeks to ensure that internationally recognized ESHS standards are complied with in the Contracts it finances. Consequently, the applicants, bidders, consultants and their subcontractors shall undertake, by signing the Statement of Integrity, to:

- a) Comply with the environmental standards recognized by the international community, including the international conventions for the protection of the environment and, in particular, take all reasonable steps to avoid or limit negative effects on vegetation, biodiversity, soils, groundwater and surface water, and on persons and property resulting from pollution, noise, vibration, traffic and other effects resulting from our activities, in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable in the country of performance of the Contract.
- b) Implement measures to mitigate environmental and social risks when they are indicated in the environmental and social management plan provided by the Contracting Authority, and ensure that the emissions, surface discharge and effluents produced by our activities respect the limits, specifications or requirements applicable to the Contract.
- c) Respect the rights of workers related to wages, working hours, rest periods and vacations, overtime, minimum age, regular payments, compensation and benefits, in accordance with the standards recognized by the international community, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organization (ILO), in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable in the country of performance of the Contract; indicate these elements in a document annexed to the employment contracts of our employees and made available to the Contracting Authority; and respect and facilitate the rights of workers to organize themselves and set up a complaints management mechanism for direct or indirect workers.
- d) Implement practices for non-discrimination and equal opportunities, and ensure the prohibition of child labor and forced labor.
- e) Keep a record for each member of the local staff recording the hours worked by each person, the type of work, the wages paid and the training undertaken, and ensure that these records are available at all times to be inspected by the Contracting Authority and the authorized representatives of the government, in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable to the protection of personal data in the country of performance of the Contract.

### **Attachment: Price Adjustment Formula**

If in accordance with GCC 15.1, prices shall be adjustable, the following method shall be used to calculate the price adjustment:

15.1 Prices payable to the Supplier, as stated in the Contract, shall be subject to adjustment during performance of the Contract to reflect changes in the cost of labor and material components in accordance with the formula:

$$P_1 = P_0 [a + \underline{bL}_1 + \underline{cM}_1] - P_0$$

 $L_0$   $M_0$ 

#### a+b+c = 1

in which:

P<sub>1</sub> = adjustment amount payable to the Supplier;

P<sub>0</sub> = Contract Price (base price);

a = fixed element representing profits and overheads included in the Contract Price and generally in the range of five (5) to fifteen (15) percent;

b = estimated percentage of labor component in the Contract Price;

c = estimated percentage of material component in the Contract Price;

L<sub>0</sub>, L<sub>1</sub> = labor indices applicable to the appropriate industry in the country of origin on the base date and date for adjustment, respectively;

 $M_0$ ,  $M_1$  = material indices for the major raw material on the base date and date for adjustment, respectively, in the country of origin.

The coefficients a, b, and c as specified by the Purchaser are as follows:

a = [insert value of coefficient]b= [insert value of coefficient]

c= [insert value of coefficient]

The Bidder shall indicate the source of the indices and the base date indices in its bid.

Base date = thirty (30) days prior to the deadline for submission of the bids.

Date of adjustment = [insert number of weeks] weeks prior to date of shipment (representing the mid-point of the period of manufacture).

The above price adjustment formula shall be invoked by either party subject to the following further conditions:

- (a) No price adjustment shall be allowed beyond the original delivery dates unless specifically stated in the extension letter. As a rule, no price adjustment shall be allowed for periods of delay for which the Supplier is entirely responsible. The Purchaser will, however, be entitled to any decrease in the prices of the Goods and Services subject to adjustment;
- (b) If the currency in which the Contract Price P<sub>0</sub> is expressed is different from the currency of origin of the labor and material indices, a correction factor will be applied to avoid incorrect adjustments of the Contract Price. The correction factor shall correspond to the ratio of exchange rates between the two currencies on the base date and the date for adjustment as defined above;
- (c) No price adjustment shall be payable on the portion of the Contract Price paid to the Supplier as advance payment.

### **Section X. Contract Forms**

This Section contains forms which, once completed, will form part of the Contract. The forms for Performance Security and Advance Payment Security, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder after contract award.

### **Table of Forms**

Letter of Acceptance	127
Contract Agreement	128
Performance Security (Bank Guarantee)	130
Advance Payment Security	131

Section X. Contract Forms 127

Letter of Acceptance
[letterhead paper of the Purchaser]
[date] To: [name and address of the Supplier]
Subject: Notification of Award Contract No
This is to notify you that your Bid dated[insert date] for execution of the [insert name of the contract and identification number, as given in the SCC] for the Contract Price of [insert amount in
numbers and words and name of currency], as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by our institution.
You are requested to furnish the Performance Security within 28 days in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, of the Bidding Documents.
Authorized Signature:

**Attachment: Contract Agreement** 

#### **Contract Agreement**

#### THIS AGREEMENT made

the [insert number] day of [insert: month], [insert: year].

#### **BETWEEN**

- (1) [insert complete name of Purchaser], a [insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of .... of the State of {insert name of Country of Purchaser }, or corporation incorporated under the laws of { insert name of Country of Purchaser }] and having its principal place of business at [insert address of Purchaser ] (hereinafter called "the Purchaser"), and
- (2) [insert name of Supplier], a corporation incorporated under the laws of [insert: country of Supplier] and having its principal place of business at [insert: address of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier").

WHEREAS the Purchaser invited bids for certain Goods and ancillary services, viz., [insert brief description of Goods and Services] and has accepted a Bid by the Supplier for the supply of those Goods and Services in the sum of [insert Contract Price in words and figures, expressed in the Contract currency (ies)] (hereinafter called "the Contract Price").

### NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other contract documents.
  - (a) The Letter of Acceptance;
  - (b) The Bid Submission Form and Appendix to Bid Submission Form (including the signed Statement of Integrity);
  - (c) The Addenda Nos. (if any);
  - (d) Special Conditions of Contract;
  - (e) General Conditions of Contract;
  - (f) The Specification (including Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications);
  - (g) The completed Bidding Forms (including Price Schedules);

- (h) Any other document listed in GCC as forming part of the Contract.
- 3. In the event of any discrepancy or inconsistency within the Contract documents, then the documents shall prevail in the order listed above.
- 4. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as specified in this Agreement, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 5. The Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of [insert the name of the Contract governing law country] on the day, month and year indicated above.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser

Signed: [insert signature]
In the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation]
In the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

For and on behalf of the Supplier

Signed: [insert signature of authorized representative(s) of the Supplier]
In the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation]
In the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

**Performance Security (Bank Guarantee)** 

**Beneficiary:** [Insert name and Address of Purchaser]

**Date:** [Insert date of issue]

**PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.:** [Insert guarantee reference number]

**Guarantor:** [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that [insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the supply of [insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract"). Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is required.

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the .... Day of ....., 2... <sup>2</sup>, and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Letter of Acceptance, and denominated either in the currency (ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date as described in GC Clause 18.4. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Purchaser would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

Section X. Contract Forms 131

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

### **Advance Payment Security**

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

**Beneficiary:** [Insert name and Address of Purchaser]

**Date:** [Insert date of issue]

**ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.:** [Insert guarantee reference number]

**Guarantor:** [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that [insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the execution of [insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum [insert amount in figures] () [insert amount in words] is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in figures] (\_\_\_\_\_\_\_) [insert amount in words]<sup>1</sup> upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's first demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Applicant:

- (a) Has used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of Goods; or
- (b) Has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the amount which the Applicant has failed to repay.

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the Applicant on its account number [insert number] at [insert name and address of Applicant's bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Applicant as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, has been certified for payment, or on the [insert date<sup>31</sup>]., whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No.758.

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

<sup>31</sup> Insert the Delivery date of the Goods at the named place of destination stipulated in the Contract Delivery Schedule. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of the time to perform the Contract, the Purchaser would need to request an extension of this Guarantee from the bank. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the Guarantee. In preparing this Guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the Form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "We agree to a one-time extension of this Guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in response to the Purchaser's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to us before the expiry of the Guarantee."